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“EQUITA’s mission is to be the leading independent Italian
investment bank for Italian companies by assisting them with a
full range of corporate finance services and for international and
domestic institutional investors by providing them with high quality
research and advice”

Auditorium in Gae Aulenti Square

8

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

Letter from the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer
2017 was an extraordinary year for EQUITA Group.
During the year, our Group has undergone a reorganization
consisting in the establishment of a holding company, EQUITA
Group, which controls 100% of EQUITA SIM and 50% of the new
joint venture dedicated to private equity. This new structure will allow
our Company to seize growth opportunities in the best possible way,
especially in the Alternative Asset Management business that has
become an important new operating area.
We have also reorganized the Group’s shareholding structure,
further consolidating the management control and strengthening
the long-term commitment towards all our stakeholders.
Moreover, after promoting the launch of a SPAC, in partnership with
Private Equity Partners, which successfully collected €150 million and
was listed on the AIM Italia in August, we also successfully completed
the listing of EQUITA Group on the same segment, raising over €22
million that reinforced our Group and will allow us to grow over time.
All of these activities have contributed in redesigning our Group and
consolidating its positioning as the leading independent Investment
Bank in Italy.
With regard to our business, EQUITA ended the year with excellent
results and our four business areas performed better than expected.
Sales and Trading was able to contain the expected decrease in
revenues from brokerage activities due to the low volatility of the
market and the progressive compliance of investors to MiFID II
regulations, in anticipation of its entry into force at the beginning
of 2018. Widely recognized among the best players for the quality
of service delivered to investors, our Sales and Trading team played
an essential role in the distribution of debt and equity offerings
originated by Investment Banking.
Investment Banking performed a record year, benefitting from the
favourable market environment. It demonstrated the quality of its
team and the strong positioning achieved in assisting companies and
financial institutions by providing a whole range of corporate finance
products. The Investment Banking area was able to close successful
and prestigious transactions such as the IPO of GimaTT, the 2017-2023
Mittel bond issue, the sale of Casse di Risparmio di Cesena, Rimini and
San Miniato to Credit Agricole and the sale of Enerco Distribuzione to
ItalGas. In 2017, Investment Banking net revenues almost equalled
the ones of Sales and Trading, thus proving the effectiveness of the
diversification strategy launched a decade ago and the solidity of the
business and the reputation of the Group.

Proprietary Trading closed the year with excellent results, maintaining
its strong vocation to customer service and favouring activities with
low capital absorption and low risk level.
Alternative Asset Management is an area in which our Group is
dedicating many resources to further expand and diversify our
business. This business area has increased its contribution to the
Group by ending the year with over €650 million assets under
management, 5x higher than 5 years ago. It offers 5 products able
to satisfy the needs of different investors: 3 different portfolios of
assets under management focused on Italian equities, the private
debt fund that in 2017 successfully completed its subscription phase
and the SPAC mentioned earlier.
Our Research Team, systematically voted by institutional investors as
best-in-class for the quality and breadth of its research, is constantly
supporting all our activities together with the Finance and Operations
team, which manages with efficiency and creativity a Group of
increasing management and regulatory complexity.
A significant increase in revenues combined with our discipline in
keeping costs under control, has led to a consolidated Net Profit of
€11 million. This result represents an increase of 25% compared
to the previous year and enabled EQUITA to propose a dividend of
€0.22 to the Shareholders’ Meeting, a dividend that is 10% higher
than promised by the Board of Directors during the IPO at the end
of last year.
Our diversified and synergic business model, the quality and
dedication of all Group’s employees, to whom we address our most
sincere gratitude, and our values of rightness, attention to the needs
of our customers, independence and partnership, are the pillars on
which we have built a solid and growing Group, that in 2018 is
45 years old. More than ever, we have the perception that EQUITA
is well positioned to continue to grow and create value for all our
stakeholders and we look with optimism for the years to come.

Francesco Perilli

Andrea Vismara

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

9

10

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

11

EQUITA Group at a Glance
What is EQUITA Group?
Independent firm

Solid Financial Performance

EQUITA Group is an independent firm, built and managed by its
partners and professionals. We are committed, entrepreneurial,
collaborative and open to a changing world.

EQUITA Group is committed to continue achieving a solid financial
performance with a diversified and capital-light business model. We
have consistently generated a high dividend flow to our shareholders.

Clear and Diversified Business Model

Leadership in Mid-Small Cap Markets

EQUITA Group business model is unique and difficult to replicate, as
it combines independent advice and deep knowledge of, and access
to capital markets. It is clear, focused and organized around five
business areas:
•• Sales and Trading of equities, bonds and derivatives for
domestic and international clients
•• Investment Banking dedicated to advise industrial companies
and financial institutions, regarding M&A deals, equity and debt
capital markets transactions
•• Proprietary Trading, a business area that offers client-driven
transactions (e.g. specialist, bonds and ETF trading, etc.) and
directional activities based on our trading strategies to take
advantage of market trends
•• Alternative Asset Management, providing traditional Asset
Management and innovative Private Debt and Private Equity
products
•• Research Team supporting all four business areas and broadly
recognized for its excellence

EQUITA Group is the reference partner for many Italian small-mid
cap companies of excellence. Our experienced management team
is able to provide a full range of services and guarantee high-quality
access to debt and equity.

Socially Responsible
Our people are our greatest assets. It is only with their dedication,
determination, and hard work that we can best serve our clients. We
heavily invest in training our young professionals, both internally and
externally by selecting specific programs. Since 2013, we have been
partners with Bocconi University to advance knowledge of capital
markets and to analyze new developments and market trends. We
are generous to our community. In the last two years, we supported
over 10 non-profit organizations (besides Bocconi University) with a
contribution of approximately €250.000. In addition, we promote
the artworks of emerging artists throughout the EQUITArte project.

EQUITA Group Banner – first day of listing on AIM Italia (November 23rd, 2017)
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EQUITA Group at a Glance
2017 Key Figures (consolidated)
€53.9 mn

Net Revenues

€11.0 mn

Net Profit

€79.0 mn

Shareholder’s Equity (at year-end)

€0.22
29.8%
120
€22.8 bn
5.0%
350
€1.2 bn
7
€654 mn
5
117
47
96%

Dividend per share
Total Capital Ratio (at year-end)
Professionals and Staff (at year-end)
Traded volume in the Italian MTA market (on behalf of third-parties)
Market share in the Italian MTA market (on behalf of third-parties)
Active clients in Sales and Trading
Capital raised for our clients in new offerings (both equity and debt)
Number of equity and debt deals as Global Coordinator and Bookrunner
Assets under Management (year-end) – including the €150 mn EPS Equita
PEP SPAC S.p.A. (BIT: EPS) and €100 mn Private Debt fund
Investments in Private Equity and Private Debt
Italian companies covered by our Research Team
European companies covered by our Research Team
Percentage of Italian market capitalization covered by our Research Team

#1

Institutional Investor ranking for “Best Italian Research Team ”

#2

Extel ranking for “Best Country Analysis”

#2

Extel ranking for “Best Broker in Italy – Trading Execution”
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EQUITA Group at a Glance
Summary Income Statement (Reclassified)
INCOME STATEMENT (€MN)

2017

2016

Delta %

Sales and Trading

20.8

24.4

-15%

Investment Banking

20.2

15.9

+27%

Proprietary Trading

9.7

6.2

+56%

Alternative Asset Management

3.2

2.1

+57%

Net Revenues

53.9

48.5

+11%

Personnel Costs

(26.4)

(24.5)

+8%

  Fixed Component

(13.6)

(12.7)

+7%

  Variable Component

(12.9)

(11.8)

+9%

Other Administrative Expenses

(12.1)

(10.7)

+13%

Profit before Taxes

15.4

13.4

+15%

Income Taxes

(4.3)

(4.5)

-4%

Net Profit

11.0

8.8

+25%

0.0

4.4

n.m.

2017

2016

Delta %

120

107

+12%

Total Costs / Net Revenues

71%

73%

Personnel Costs / Net Revenues

49%

50%

Variable Component / Personnel Costs

49%

48%

Net Equity (€mn)

79.0

51.4

Return on Tangible Equity (ROTE) (a)

17%

23%

Return on Tangible Equity (ROTE) (b)

27%

23%

Total Capital Ratio (TCR) (c)

30%

16%

EPS (€) (d)

0.24

0.19

of which Minority Interests

Other Data
Headcount (year-end)

+54%

+26%

(a) Tangible Book Value as of December 31st, 2017.
(b) Tangible Book Value calculated by including net IPO proceeds to the Company (€22.1 mn) as of November 2017.
(c) 2016 Total Capital Ratio refers to EQUITA SIM.
(d) 2016 EPS are based on the net outstanding shares as of December 31st, 2017, excluding treasury shares.
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EQUITA Group History
A long Tradition of Independent Investment Bank

LONG TRADITION
1973 
Euromobiliare, one of
the first Italian private
merchant banks, is
established
1981 
Listing on the Milan
Stock Exchange
One of the first Italian Private
Merchant Banks

PARTNERSHIP WITH
A FINANCIAL INVESTOR
2007 J.C. Flowers & Co.
acquires a controlling
stake of Euromobiliare
SIM in partnership with
management
2008 Euromobiliare becomes
EQUITA; the brand
change is managed
successfully
Revamping of Investment Banking
with the addition of services to our
clients

PARTNERSHIP WITH
COMMERCIAL BANKS
1988 H
 SBC (Midland Bank Plc)
acquires Euromobiliare
1991 
Incorporation of
Euromobiliare SIM
according to law 1/1991
1994 
Credito Emiliano
acquires a majority stake
of Euromobiliare with
a subsequent reverse
merger and listing on
the stock exchange
Leader in Sales and Trading
and in Equity Research

16

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

ESTABLISHMENT OF EQUITA GROUP
2015 The management team
of EQUITA (already owning
49.5%) and A. Profumo acquire
50.5% of the Company from
J.C. Flowers & Co.
2017 Establishment of a holding
company, EQUITA Group,
which holds 100% of EQUITA
SIM; management acquires
majority of A. Profumo’s stake
IPO New Shareholding Structure and
Corporate Governance
(newly created Alternative Asset
Management business area)

EQUITA Group History
2017 Relevant Events
February 2

EQUITA Group continues its long-lasting tradition of being ranked N. 1 as
“Best Italian Research Team ” by Institutional Investors; also ranked N. 2 as
“Best Country Analysis” by Extel

June 2nd

Joint-Venture with leading operator (Private Equity Partners SGR S.p.A.) to
develop Private Equity business

July 1st

New Group structure implemented with creation of EQUITA Group Holding
Company

August 1st

Listing on the AIM Italia of a €150 mn SPAC

November 23rd

€45 mn IPO of EQUITA Group on the AIM Italia (BIT: EQUI); stock priced at
€2,90/share; always traded above IPO price in the aftermarket

nd

(EPS Equita PEP SPAC S.p.A. – BIT: EPS)

Andrea Vismara (left) and Francesco Perilli on the IPO day at the Milan Stock Exchange
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MUDEC (Museo delle Culture di Milano) - Museum Hall
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EQUITA Group Today
Corporate Structure and Governance
Shareholding and Corporate Structure

Corporate Governance

EQUITA Group S.p.A. is the listed entity on the Milan Stock Exchange
(BIT: EQUI) and is the parent company of EQUITA SIM, a 100% owned
subsidiary. It also owns 50% of Equita PEP Holding S.r.l., a company
that holds a participation in EPS Equita PEP SPAC S.p.A. (BIT: EPS).
The remaining 50% of the Equita PEP Holding S.r.l. is owned by
Private Equity Partners S.p.A..

EQUITA actively manages and monitors the company business and
performance by the means of several committees that meet regularly.
We at EQUITA are fortunate to be supported by very experienced
independent Directors who play a key role in the oversight of
corporate business.

Control and Risk Committee
Equita

Equita
Group
S,p,A,
Group S.p.A.

100%
100%
Equita SIM
Equita
S,p,A,

SIM S.p.A.

50%
50% PEP
Equita
Private Equity
Equita PEP
Holding
S,r ,l, 50% Partners
Private Equity
S,p,A
Holding S.r.l.
50%
Partners S.p.A.

EPS Equita PE P
SPAC
S,p,APEP
,
EPS
Equita
SPAC S.p.A.

Sara Biglieri

Non-executive

Massimo Ferrari

Independent

Remuneration Committee
Francesco Perilli

President

Massimo Ferrari

Independent

Thierry Porté

Independent

Michela Zeme

President

Sara Biglieri

Non-executive

Massimo Ferrari

Independent

Treasury Shares
9,5%

Free Float
31,2%

Management
54,2%

President

Related-Party Committee

As of December 31st, 2017, EQUITA management ownership was
equal to 54.2%, thus aligning management interests to the ones of
shareholders and stakeholders in general.

Nicla
5,1%

Michela Zeme

EQUITA SIM Board of Directors
Luigi Roth

Chairman

Matteo Ghilotti

Vice Chairman

Andrea Vismara

Chief Executive Officer

Francesco Perilli

Director

Fabio Deotto

Director
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EQUITA Group Today

EQUITA Group Today

Business Model and Areas of Business
High

Business Model and Areas
of Business
Our business model combines a high level of independence with

Our business model combines a high level of independence with
a deep knowledge of, and access to Italian debt and equity
a deep knowledge of, and access to Italian debt and equity capital
capital markets, thus differentiating us from pure advisory
markets,
thus differentiating us from pure advisory groups and from
and from
global
investment
banks.
We at EQUITA
are
global groups
investment
banks.
We at
EQUITA are
committed
to continue
to pursue
such approach
in the
future.
committed
to continue
to pursue
such approach in the future.

Areas of Business of EQUITA SIM

Basso Livello di indipendenza
Low Alto Independence

EQUITA Group Business Model

EQUITA Group Business Model

Pure
PureAdvisory
Advisory Firms
Groups

GlobalInvestment
Investment Banks
Global
Banks

Consulenza
finanziaria pura

Low

High

Banche d’Investimento
Globali

Basso

EQUITA SIM is a 100% owned subsidiary of EQUITA Group. The

Access to Capital Markets

Accesso ai Merca dei Capitale

Alto

Company’s activities are performed within this entity and
organized in four business areas: Sales and Trading, Investment

AreasBanking,
of Business
of EQUITA
SIM and
Proprietary
Trading

Alternative

Asset

EQUITAManagement.
SIM is a 100%
owned subsidiary
of Team
EQUITA
Group.the
The
Furthermore,
our Research
supports
Company’s
activitiesareas.
are performed within this entity and organized
four business
in four business areas: Sales and Trading, Investment Banking,
Proprietary Trading and Alternative Asset Management. Furthermore,
2017 Net Revenues
our Research Team supports the four business areas.
€53.9 mn

S&T

AA
€3.2 mn

2017 Net Revenues
S&T
€20.8 mn
€53.9 mn

IB
S&T

S&T
€20.8 mn

AA
€3.2 mn

PT
€9.7 mn

IB
€20.2 mn

PT
€9.7 mn

IB
€20.2 mn

RT

RT

PT
IB

AA

Sales and Trading
Leading Italian trading floor

Investment Banking
Highly regarded corporate finance team

Sales and Trading
Leading Italian trading floor

Proprietary Trading

ProfitableBanking
desk with limited risk
Investment
Highly regarded corporate finance team
Alternative Asset Management

PT
M

Proprietary
Trading diversification
Recent business
Profitable desk with limited risk

RT
AA

ResearchAsset
Team
Alternave
Management
Supporting
thediversification
four business areas
Recent
business

RT

Research Team
Supporting the four business areas
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EQUITA Group Today
2017 Highlights by Business Area
Sales and Trading

Investment Banking

•• 350 active institutional clients

•• €1.2 bn raised for our clients (€0.6 bn IPOs,

€0.5 bn bond issues and €0.1 bn Accelerated
Book Buildings)

•• Leading player in the Italian stock exchange

with a market share of 5.0% for trades on
behalf of third-parties

•• Global Coordinator and Bookrunner in 7

equity and debt deals, including the highly
successful GIMA TT IPO (€424 mn)

•• #2 “Best Broker in Italy – Trading Execution”

(Extel)
•• Over 200 roadshows in Italy and 200 abroad

in the last 3 years

•• The leading independent Italian ECM player
•• Top 10 in M&A by number of transactions

over the last 5 years.

Proprietary Trading

Alternative Asset Management

•• Execellent performance: 56% increase in

Net Revenues

•• Over €650 mn AUM at year-end, of which

€400 mn invested in 3 investment lines
(mainly equity)

•• 300 specialist contracts (23 more than in

2016)
•• Expert in mitigating market volatility by

balancing the portfolio mix between risky
and client-driven activities (55% and 45%
respectively in 2017)

•• Closed-ended Private Debt fund of €100 mn

(invested in 4 deals for a total of €27.3 mn,
plus €7.0 mn committed by year-end)
•• Private Equity investments with

a deal-by-deal approach
(raised €150 mn SPAC)

•• Wide range of services: risk arbitrage and

special situations, market making, specialist
and fixed income portfolio, etc.

Research Team
•• 14 analysts
•• 16 years of average seniority
•• 117 Italian companies covered
•• 47 foreign companies covered

•• 96% of total market cap of Italian
companies covered
•• #1 “Best Italian Research Team ”
(Institutional Investors)
•• #2 “Best Country Analysis” (Extel)
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Our Vision, our Mission, our Values
Vision
EQUITA’s mission is to be the leading independent Italian investment bank for Italian companies by
assisting them with a full range of corporate finance services and for international and domestic
institutional investors by providing them with high quality research and advice

Mission
We are committed to deliver long-term superior value to all our key stakeholders by:
•• Strengthening our position as the leading independent Italian investment bank
•• Leveraging our relations with companies and knowledge of capital markets
•• Pursuing sustainable growth and achieving further diversification with the contribution of all fourbusiness areas, supported by our best-in-class Research Team
•• Running a well-balanced risk-return operation
•• Providing return on investment in line with the best practice
•• Being “the place to be” for talented professionals

Values
Independence
•• Undivided loyalty toward our customers’ best interests
•• As a truly independent investment bank, our decisions are not affected by lending positions,
corporate equity stakes, or controlling shareholders
Client Focus
•• Provide the highest possible level of service by being flexible and innovative
•• Increase the number of services offered to our existing clients while enlarging our existing client
base
Manage a Sustainable Business
•• Manage and position the company for the long-term
•• Balance operational risk with financial risk to create value for our stakeholders
•• Be cost and risk conscious
Nurture a Strong Entrepreneurial Culture
•• Maintain a significant employee ownership
•• Be open and curious
•• Sponsor and support well-thought out initiatives
Integrity
•• Maintain the highest ethical standards
•• Reinforce moral strength
•• Lead by example at every level of the organization
Value our People
•• Develop and retain highly-performing managers and employees
•• Provide a wide range of training and internal opportunities
•• Focus on the quality of our working environment
•• Hire and promote based on merits
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Management Team

Francesco Perilli

Andrea Vismara

  Chairman

  Chief Executive Officer

Sales & Trading

Proprietary Trading

Fabio Deotto

Sergio Martucci

Head of Sales and Trading
Member of the Board of Directors of
  EQUITA SIM

Head of Proprietary Trading
  and Market Making
Alternative Asset Management

Stefano Lustig
Head of Alternative Asset
Management
Member of the Board of Directors of
  EQUITA Group

Edward Duval
  Head of Sales UK and US

Research Team

Investment Banking

Matteo Ghilotti
Head of Research Team
Vice Chairman of the Board
  of Directors of EQUITA SIM

Marco Clerici
Co-Head of Investment Banking –
  Head of Global Financing

Finance e Operations

Gaia Mazzalveri
Co-Head of Investment Banking –
  Head of Financial Institutions


Alberto Schiesaro

Stefania Milanesi
CFO and COO

Carlo Andrea Volpe

Head of Business
Development and IT



EQUITA SIM

Co-Head of Investment Banking –
  Head of Corporate Advisory

Luigi Roth
Chairman of the Board
of Directors
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Corporate Social Responsibility
Highlights
At EQUITA Group, we all care about the well-being of our people and
their professional growth, as we believe they represent the heart and
brain of our business. At EQUITA we are all committed to attract and
retain talented professionals in the long run.

It is starting from this specific principle that we invest in “education”,
whether internally by training our people or externally by:

•• Sponsoring a program that awards scholarships to the worthiest
Italian high school students (www.fuoriclassedellascuola.it),

•• Awarding annual scholarships to selected talented students of
Bocconi University.

Furthermore, EQUITA Group has been sustaining Bocconi
University’s selected research projects (Baffi Carefin, Centre for
Applied Research on International Markets, Banking, Finance
and Regulation) since 2013.

We also feel proud to contribute to the world of art by promoting the
artwork of young artists through the EQUITArte initiative.

Finally, we all feel we have a social responsibility to open our doors to
other communities. In this regard, in the last two years we donated
approximately €250.000 to over 10 charitable organizations, an
increasing trend year after year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
Our people - Their stories
We are committed to the development and retention of the best
talents. The average tenure at EQUITA is 10 years and considerably
higher among senior management. We source our young people
from top Italian universities and we invest in growing them at every
step of their careers.
At EQUITA, we offer an internal training program, “Programma di
Rotazione Interna”, aimed at rotating young professionals through
different departments in order to allow them to experience how the
entire “corporate machine” works.
In the last few years, senior professionals have sponsored internal
lectures and talks on specific and selected financial topics of interest,
the “EQUITA Cineforum”.

“

I work in the Research Team as
Head of Editing. I have been with the
company for over 25 years. I cannot
think of a better place to be. We all
work in team to achieve the same
goals”. (Alessandra)

Finally, we organize specific training programs both in-house
and externally (UK, Denmark and India) to improve the hard skills
(M&A Modelling, Corporate Restructuring, Valuation, etc.) and the
soft skills (Persuasion, Presentation, Report Writing, Negotiation,
Leadership, etc.) of our professionals. Last year, MISB Bocconi
(“Mumbai International School of Business – Bocconi”) organized an
intensive and ad-hoc Executive Education Program for some of our
professionals in Mumbai, India.

“

I started at EQUITA as an
intern. I am now experiencing
a specific Investment Banking
Analyst Program, which includes
an annual rotation among various
teams and an international
experience in Mumbai organized
by Bocconi University.” (Davide)

We recruit and remunerate based on merits with a variable component
of total compensation that has been consistently close to 50% of
total compensation in the last 5 years.

42

Average Age at EQUITA

10

Average years of tenure at EQUITA

19

No. of Interns during 2017

43

Days of training in London and Copenhagen (20162017)

13

Professionals trained in London and Copenhagen
(2016-2017)

28

Days of training in Mumbai (2017)

4

Professionals trained in Mumbai (2017)

3

Days spent on Campus Fairs to recruit talented students

“

I am currently interning in Investment
Banking. What I like of EQUITA is the caring
environment and the attention that senior
people devote to juniors. Everybody made
me feel part of the organization since day 1”.
(Giorgio)
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Corporate Social Responsibility
EQUITA Group and
UniBocconi: a successful and
long-lasting partnership
Since 2013, EQUITA and Bocconi University have built a long-term
partnership in order to encourage a debate on market structural
elements, development factors and possible solutions for the growth
of capital markets for Italian companies. At EQUITA, we strive to
remain at the cutting-edge of the analysis of market changes and
new trends. A continuative collaboration with Bocconi University is
aimed at achieving this specific goal.

EQUITA is an active “Partner Sostenitore” of UniBocconi by sponsoring
the Bocconi Baffi Carefin - Centre for Applied Research on
International Markets, Banking, Finance and Regulation. Our
annual event at Bocconi University - centered on a specific topic attracts influential managers, professionals, politicians, professors
and media to discuss matters of economic relevance.

Winners of 2013 – 2017 editions:
EQUITA, in cooperation with Bocconi University and with the
sponsorship of Borsa Italiana, awards the best Italian companies
that distinguished themselves in Debt and Equity fund raising during
the year. A panel of fourteen highly regarded judges, chaired and
coordinatred by Francesco Perilli, President of EQUITA Group, selects
the companies.
EQUITA Best Strategy Awards cover three categories
•• Fund raising in Debt Capital Markets
•• Fund raising in Equity Capital Markets
•• Fund raising by small-mid cap companies in Equity Capital
Markets

Covers of most recent publications by Bocconi Baffi Carefin with the cooperation of EQUITA
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Corporate Social Responsibility
EQUITArte
(Pictures© by courtesy of PONTI X L’ARTE)
EQUITA promotes the development of the community in which we
operate. Support of the art is an integral part of the growth and the
well-being of the members of a community. EQUITArte is a project
realized with PONTI X L’ARTE aimed at promoting young artists also
in innovative contexts and formats.

Renzo Nucara– Butterfly Effect –
wood, paper, resins, objects (2012)

Fabio Savoldi - Luce – Matite e lampadina (2011)

EQUITA accommodates artworks of painters, photographers and
other artists in its halls and corridors so that our offices become a
gallery and our clients and employees can enjoy the sightings, and,
if desired, purchase the artworks.

Patrick Corrado We’ll love Aladdin Sane

Mc Enery - Tooth Gap
Photographic Print (1975)

Riccardo Bonfandini - L’Illy e il vagabondo “Enigmi Pop”
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EQUITA hallway leading to our meeting rooms – EQUITArte collection
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Milestones of our business areas
Investment Banking
Total capital raised since 2013 (senior roles)

542

€mn
€mn
€mn

542
542

929

929
929

827
827

827

306

306
306

Capital raising breakdown in 2017

1,196
1,196

1,196

ABB: 12%

Bond: 40%

2013

2013

2013

2014

2015

2014

2014

2015

2015

2016

2016

IPO
48%

2017

2016

2017

2017

Selected transactions in 2017
ACCELERATED
BOOKBUILDING
(€ACCELERATED
35 mln)
BOOKRUNNER
BOOKBUILDING

ACCELERATED BOOKBUILDING
OF A STAKE OWNED BY BPVI
(€ 76.1 MLN) BOOKBUILDING
ACCELERATED
SOLE
OF ABOOKRUNNER
STAKE OWNED BY BPVI

(€ 76.1 MLN)
SOLE BOOKRUNNER

(€ 35 mln)
BOOKRUNNER

MARCH 2017
ACCELERATED
BOOKBUILDING
(€ 35 mln)
BOOKRUNNER

MARCH

MARCH 2017

EUR 124M 6yr 3,75%
GLOBAL COORDINATOR,
APPOINTED BROKER AND SOLE
BOOKRUNNER
EUR
124M 6yr 3,75%
GLOBAL COORDINATOR,
2017 APPOINTED BROKER AND SOLE
BOOKRUNNER

JULY 2017

APRIL 2017

DISPOSAL OF A MAJORITY STAKE

EUR 124M 6yr 3,75%
GLOBAL COORDINATOR,
FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO MITTEL GROUP
APPOINTED BROKER
SOLE
INAND
RAISING
OF DEBT FOR THE BUYOUT OF
BOOKRUNNER
IMC
FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO MITTEL GROUP
IN RAISING OF DEBT FOR THE BUYOUT OF

JULY 2017

IMC

SEPTEMBER 2017

APRIL IN
2017
THE DISPOSAL OF A MAJORITY STAKE
IN EUROVITA

AUGUST2017

AUGUST2017
DISPOSAL OF A MAJORITY
STAKE
STAKE
DISPOSAL
ADVISOR
TO THE
FINANCIAL ADVISORFINANCIAL
TO
THE
COMPANY
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE

IN THE DISPOSAL OF
A MAJORITYSTAKE
STAKE
DISPOSAL OF 100%
TO
STAKE DISPOSAL
IN EUROVITA ITALGAS

FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
DISPOSAL OF 100%
STAKE TO
ITALGAS

AUGUST2017

IMC

SEPTEMBER 2017

FINANCIAL ADVISOR STIRLING SQUARE IN
RAISING OF DEBT FOR THE
BUYOUT OF
BITOLEA THROUGH ITS THIRD FUND
PORTFOLIO
COMPANY
VISCOLUBE
FINANCIAL
ADVISOR
STIRLING SQUARE IN
RAISING OF DEBT FOR THE
BUYOUT OF
BITOLEA THROUGH ITS THIRD FUND
APRIL
2017
PORTFOLIO COMPANY VISCOLUBE

AUGUST 2017

AUGUST 2017
FINANCIAL ADVISOR
IPOSTIRLING SQUARE IN
RAISING OF DEBT
FOR
THE
BUYOUT OF
(€ 424
mln)
BITOLEA THROUGH ITS THIRD FUND
JOINT GLOBAL
COORDINATOR,
PORTFOLIO
COMPANY
VISCOLUBE
BOOKRUNNER & SPONSOR
IPO
(€ 424 mln)

JOINT GLOBAL COORDINATOR,
BOOKRUNNER & SPONSOR

AUGUST
2017
OCTOBER
2017

(€ 38 mln)
SOLE BOOKRUNNER

MAY 2017

MAY 2017
ACCELERATED
BOOKBUILDING
(€ 38 mln)
ACQUISITION
SOLE
FINANCIAL ADVISOR
TO BOOKRUNNER
THE RELATED PARTIES
COMMITTEE IN THE ACQUISITION OF ALETTI
ACQUISITION
GESTIELLE
FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO THE RELATED PARTIES

COMMITTEE IN THE ACQUISITION OF ALETTI

MAYGESTIELLE
2017

AUGUST 2017

AUGUST 2017
ACQUISITION
FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO THE RELATED PARTIES
COMMITTEE IN THE ACQUISITION
OF ALETTI
SUB-UNDERWRITER
IN
BANCA
GESTIELLE
CARIGE RIGHTS
ISSUE

SUB-UNDERWRITER IN
BANCA
CARIGE RIGHTS ISSUE
DECEMBER
2017 2017
AUGUST

OCTOBER 2017

DECEMBER2017

OCTOBER2017
STAKE DISPOSAL

IN RAISING OF DEBT FOR THE BUYOUT OF

APRIL 2017

EUR 350M 7yr 4,125%
JOINT LEAD MANAGER &
BOOKRUNNER

ACCELERATED
BOOKBUILDING
(€ 38 mln) ACCELERATED
SOLE BOOKRUNNER
BOOKBUILDING

OCTOBER2017

SEPTEMBER 2017

FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO MITTEL GROUP

THE COMPANY

IN THE DISPOSAL OF A MAJORITY STAKE
DISPOSAL OF A MAJORITY STAKE
IN EUROVITA
FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO
THE COMPANY

JULY 2017

JOINT LEAD MANAGER &
BOOKRUNNER

APRIL 2017

ACCELERATED BOOKBUILDING
APRIL 2017
OF A STAKE OWNED BY BPVI
(€ 76.1 MLN)
SOLE BOOKRUNNER
FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO

EUR 350M 7yr 4,125%
JOINT LEAD MANAGER &
BOOKRUNNER
EUR 350M 7yr 4,125%

FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
DISPOSAL OF 100%
STAKE TO
ITALGAS

IPO
(€ 424 mln)
JOINT GLOBAL COORDINATOR,
BOOKRUNNER & SPONSOR

OCTOBER 2017

SUB-UNDERWRITER IN
BANCA
CARIGE RIGHTS ISSUE

DECEMBER2017

OCTOBER2017
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Milestones of our business areas
Leading Position in Sales & Trading
Leading Position in Sales & Trading

Leading
Position in Sales & Trading
The leading Historical Broker

Covered
Markets
Covered
Markets

The leading Historical Broker

Constantly ranked at the top of Investor’s surveys
Constantly
ranked at the top of Investor’s surveys
The leading Historical Broker

Constantly ranked at the top of Investor’s surveys

State-of-the-art trading technologies to guarantee the best

State-of-the-art
trading
technologies to guarantee
execution
worlwide
Covered
Markets
the best execution worlwide

BEST BROKER
BEST BROKER BEST BROKER BEST BROKER
IN ITALYBEST BROKER IN ITALY
BEST BROKER
IN ITALY
IN ITALY
Trading
ExecutionIN ITALY Equity Sales
IN ITALY
Equity
Sales
Trading
Execution
BROKER
BEST BROKER
BEST BROKER
BEST BROKER
2°: 2017BEST
Equity Sales 3°: 2017
Trading Execution
2016
1°: 2016 IN ITALY
3°: 2017IN 2°:
2°:
2017 IN ITALY
IN ITALY
ITALY
3°:2°:
2017
2°:
2017
2°: 2015
1°: 2015 Equity
2016
1°:
2016
SalesEquity Sales
Trading Execution
Trading Execution
2°:2°:
2016
1°:
2016
1°: 2014
2015 1°: 2014
1°:
2015
3°:
2017
2°:
2017
2013
2017
1°: 2013
2°: 2015 3°: 1°:
1°: 2015 2°: 2017
1°: 2014
1°: 2014
2°: 2016
2016 1°: 2016
1°: 2014 2°: 2016
1°:1°:2014
1°: 20132°: 2015
2°: 2015
1°: 2013
2015 1°: 2015
1°:

1°:1°:2013
2014

1°: 2014
1°: 2013
1°: 2013

1°: 2013

1°: 2014
1°: 2013

1°: 2014
1°: 2013

Top
- Ranked Research
Top-Ranked
Research Team
Team

State-of-the-art trading technologies to guarantee
the best execution worlwide

Chi-X, Bats, Turquoise Plato, Liquidnet, Posit and others Dark Pools

Chi-X, Bats, Turquoise Plato, Liquidnet, Posit and others Dark Pools
Chi-X, Bats, Turquoise Plato, Liquidnet, Posit and others Dark Pools



Chi-X, Bats, Turquoise Plato, Liquidnet, Posit and others Dark Pools
Chi-X, Bats, Turquoise Plato, Liquidnet, Posit and others Dark Pools

Top- Ranked Research Team
Broad Research Coverage
Broad Research Coverage

Undisputed Research Leadership
Undisputed Research Leadership
Undisputed Research Leadership

Broad Research Coverage

Broad coverage of the Italian Market (approximately 96% of
total capitalization)
foreign companies
Broad
coverage of and
theselected
Italian coverage
Market of(approximately
Broad coverage of the Italian Market (approximately
96%
of of
total
and
selectedcoverage
coverage
Soc. Italiane
Soc. Europee
96%
totalcapitalization)
capitalization)
and selected
of of
foreign
companies
foreign companies
No.
ofofcompanies
companies
covered
in research
No.
inresearch
research
No.of
companies covered
covered
in
47

Research Team quality ranking constantly at the top of
International surveys for its quality

Equity
Research
constantly
Equity
Research
TeamTeam
qualityquality
rankingranking
constantly
at
the
top
of
International
surveys
for
its
at the top of International surveys for its quality quality
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Italianco.
co.
Italian
Soc. Italiane

Foreign Soc.
co.
Foreign
co. Europee
Soc. Italiane
Soc. Europee

1°: 2017
2°: 2017
2°: 2016
2°: 2016
117
1°: 2015
112
2°: 2015Italian Research Team
47 47
46
Country
Analysis
47
46
47
Italian Research
Team
46
Country
Analysis
46
1°:Best
2014
1°:Best
2014
Italian
Country
Analysis
Research
Team
1°:
2013
1°: 2013
1°: 2017
2°: 2017
1°: 2017
2°: 2017 1°: 2012
2°:
2012
2°: 2016
1°:
2°: 20162°: 2017
1°:2017
2017
2°: 2017
2°: 2016
2°: 2016 1°: 2011
2016
2017
1°: 2011
1°:
2015
2°:
2015
2°:
2°:2016
2016
2°: 2016
2°: 2016
112
117
1°: 2015
1°: 2010
2°: 2015 1°: 2010
1°: 2014
1°: 2014
117
117
1°:2015
2015
112
2°: 2015
1°:
112
2°: 2015
2°: 2009
1°: 2014
1°: 2014 1°: 2009
1°: 2013
1°: 2013
1°:
2014
1°:
2014
1°:2008
2014
1°: 2014
1°:
1°: 2008
1°: 2013
1°: 2013
2°: 2012
1°: 2012
1°:
2013
1°:
2013
1°: 2013
1°: 2013
1°: 2011
2016
2017
1°: 2011
2°:
2012
1°: 2012
2°:
2012
1°: 2012
2°: 2012
1°: 2012
1°: 2010
1°:
2010
1°:
2011
2016
2017
1°:
2011
Grande
cap.
2016
2017
1°: 2011
1°: 2011
2016
2017(Cap.
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2°: 2009
1°: 2011
Breakdown
of research coverage
by mercato > €2,5 mld) 1°: 2009
1°: 2010
1°: 2010
1°: 2010
1°:
2010
Breakdown
of research
coverage
by
1°: 2008
1°: 2008
total
capitalization
of December
31st,by
2017)
1°: 2010
1°: 2010
20%
2°: 2009
1°: 2009
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of (as
research
coverage

st
, 2017)
total capitalization (as of December
Media
st31 Cap.
total capitalization (as ofLarge
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31(Cap.
, 2017)
Cap (Market
di mercato tra €0,5

35%

20%

20%

35%

20%
35%

45%

20%
45%
35%

35%
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45%

Cap > 45%
€2.5 bn)

- €2,5 mld)

Large Cap (Market
Cap
> €2.5
bn) Piccola Cap.
Mid Cap
(Market
(Cap.cap.
mercato < €0,5 mld)
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Cap between(Cap.
€0.5 mercato > €2,5 mld)
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bn) (Market
Mid
Cap
(Cap.
mercato
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Smallbetween
Cap (Market
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45%
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Milestones of our business areas
Alternative Asset Management
A recently created and highly growing business area
Strong Growth in Assets Under Management
43% CAGR since 2012 as a result of growth in AUM and the succesful launch of SPAC and Private Debt fund

654
Asset Under Management at year end (€mn)
mn)

150
100

358

251

159

108

131

2012

2013

66
404

292
2014

Asset Management

2015

2016

Private Debt

2017

Private Equity

Private Debt Fund Deals
15%

10%

IRR

DEAL
UNDISCLOSED

5%

0%

0

2
SENIOR

4

6

SUBORDINATED 8

10

12
EQUITY

14
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Dear Shareholders,
The Financial Statements for the year ended December
31st, 2017 recorded a consolidated profit of €11,015,831,
a 25% increase versus 2016.
2017 dividend proposed for the distribution amounts to
€9,955,434.50 (€0.22/share).

Market Backdrop
2017 was characterized by the synchronized acceleration
of the global economic growth, recently revised upwards
by the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) to +3.7%
up from +3.1% of 2016. Europe was the geographic
area with the biggest positive surprises in terms of
growth acceleration.
As a matter of fact, while in December 2016 the
European Central Bank (“ECB”) estimated a +1.7% GDP
growth for the Eurozone, the year ended with a much
stronger 2.4%, GDP growth mainly due to consumer
spending and investments.
Consumption was bolstered by the increase in disposable
income and the improvement in employment data that
returned to pre-crisis levels in many European countries.
Investments benefited from a broader access to credit
favored by central banks, demand from emerging
countries and tax incentives introduced by various
governments to stimulate growth.
Italy, among other European countries, benefited
from this surge of the global economic growth and in
particular from the excellent performance of its two
main business partners, Germany and France. According
to ISTAT preliminary estimates, 2017 closed with a
growth of +1.4% compared to +0.9% in 2016, the best
percentage growth since 2007.
The strength of the Euro (+14% versus the US Dollar
in 2017) did not have negative consequences on the
economic performance of the Eurozone, because of the
dynamic domestic demand and the growth of exports to
emerging countries that benefited from the US currency
weakness.
In terms of monetary policy, 2017 did not show any
significant deviation versus the consensus view: the
Federal Reserve System (“Fed”) proceeded with three
interest rate hikes, while the ECB, though keeping
the “forward guidance” on interest rates unchanged,
announced the halving of the Quantitative Easing (“QE”)
from €60 bn to €30 bn starting in January 2018.

2017 saw a moderate rise in bond yields, equal to 25
bps for the ten-year Bund and 22 bps for BTP. Such
an increase was the result of several factors: 1) the
strengthening of the economic recovery in Europe; 2)
the reduction of purchases of securities by the Fed and
the ECB; 3) the expectation of a significant worsening
of the American public deficit due to the aggressive
fiscal policies; and 4) the potential inflationary pressures
caused by the commodity rally.
The BTP-Bund spread decreased by 3 bps to 159 bps
mainly because of the good performance of Italy in
terms of growth and containment of the public deficit
(2.1% of GDP compared to 2.4% in 2016).
As far as the equity markets are concerned, 2017 was an
exceptional year for our country with all major indexes
in a strong positive territory: FTSE MIB index +13.6%,
FTSE Italy Mid Cap +32.3% and finally FTSE AIM Italia
+22.4%. Dax (+12.8%) and CAC40 (+9.8%) showed
a positive but lower increase than the Italian indexes.
Eurostoxx600 registered an increase of 7.7% while the
MSCI Small cap Euro was up +22.2%.
The renewed interest for Eurozone equities was
fueled by the progressive upward revision of growth
estimates and the favorable outcome of the elections
in the Netherlands, France and Germany. In this
context, investors increased the asset allocation to
Italian stocks more than proportionally. The measures
approved by our Government at the end of 2016,
such as the creation of a restructuring fund for
the banking sector and the launch of PIRs (“Piani
Individuali di Risparmio”, individual savings accounts
that are estimated to have collected over €11 bn in
2017 alone), significantly improved the appeal of the
Italian market.
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For 2018, Bankitalia estimates an expansion of the Italian
economy of +1.4% largely due to the rising volume of
investments in equipment and transport from +5.2% to
+6.0%, offset by a lower contribution of net exports.
The Fed is expected to carry out three additional interest
rate hikes while the consensus is that Mr. Mario Draghi
will stop the QE in September and prepare the market
for a first increase in rates over the course of 2019.

Yet in the US, commodity rally, full employment and
the dollar depreciation have brought inflation above
the 2% target set by the Fed and introduced a new
element in the long cycle of monetary expansion that
began in 2008.
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Business Trends and Market Analysis
Introduction

1. Sales and Trading

2017 will be remembered as a very active year for Italian
Capital Markets. We at EQUITA were active in taking
advantage of this positive market trend by serving our
clients at best.

As mentioned earlier, during 2017 the Italian stock
market performed satisfactorily overall, benefiting
from the recovery of the banking sector and a gradual
improvement in the prospects for economic growth and
corporate profits.

EQUITA Group is a leading independent firm with a clear
and focused business model structured around four
business areas:
1. Sales and Trading for both domestic and foreign
clients, offering research and equity trading services;
2. Investment Banking, offering M&A, Equity and
Debt Capital Markets advisory to both industrial
companies and financial institutions;
3. Proprietary
Trading,
offering
client-driven
transactions (e.g. specialist, bonds and ETF trading,
etc.) and directional activities based on our trading
strategies to take advantage of market trends;

In terms of new equity issues on the MTA Market,
volumes were very strong (44 new issues of which 24
were ABB and 8 IPOs for a total of €5.4 bn) as a result
of investors’ search for returns from one side, and of
issuers’ desire to exploit favorable funding opportunities
on the other side. As far as equity trades are concerned,
the AIM Italia registered a +560% increase in daily
average volumes (€7.9 mn in 2017 versus €1.2 mn in
2016).

4. Alternative Asset Management, a business area
that includes Asset Management and two recent
initiatives in Private Debt and Private Equity.

According to statistical analysis by Assosim, in 2017
EQUITA market share of total Traded Volumes for third
parties on the Italian MTA was 5.0%, a data that confirms
EQUITA leadership among brokers for institutional
clients. Overall, EQUITA ranked 7th with only large
banks with an important retail franchise ahead of us in
the ranking.

All four areas are supported by our highly regarded
Research Team, a leading player in the Italian market by
providing research coverage of 117 Italian companies
and 47 foreign companies during 2017.

2017 Sales and Trading Net Revenues amounted to
€20.8 mn, a decrease of €3.6 mn if compared to 2016
Net Revenues (€24.4 mn). Such decrease was due to
three main phenomena:

Net Revenues in 2017 were €53.9 mn, an increase of
11% versus the year before (2016 Net Revenues were
equal to €48.5 mn) as shown in the graph below.

1. The adoption of MiFID II regulation by major UK
customers;

€mn

Sales and Trading
Proprietary Trading
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2. A continuously decreasing volatility in Italian
markets; and
3. A greater retail component of the market.
MiFID II was scheduled to be implemented beginning
on January 1st, 2018. Several important UK clients
had already put in place a strict separation between
research and trading since such date. MiFID II
regulation is strongly penalizing local brokers, as the
budget available to small and medium-size companies
is very limited. In addition, MiFID II customers tend to
concentrate all their trading with large international
brokers, favoring the execution price rather than an
accurate trading service.

Consequently, we traded less for all major UK customers,
but most of them confirmed EQUITA as their main research
supplier for the Italian market. Furthermore, the migration
of customers to a MiFID II model entails the need to offer
customers an increasingly complete best execution thus
removing orders from the Italian MTA in favor of other
venues.

However, despite of all market structural issues mentioned
earlier, the negative impact on Sales and Trading Net
Revenues was mitigated by the implementation of a
diversification strategy that has brought the Company
to offer additional sales and trading products to its
institutional clients. New desks offering trading of
Bonds, ETS and derivatives have been set up.

The progressive decrease in market volatility in 2017 was
the other penalizing phenomenon of trading volumes,
thus undermining the activity of most speculative desks,
which are one of the main components of our volumes.
However, on the other hand, low volatility favors equity
and debt issues thus benefiting Investment Banking (i.e.:
fees from a higher number of new offerings) and Sales
& Trading business areas (i.e.: increased revenues from
distribution of new issues to institutional investors).

Approximately 350 institutional customers were active
during the year, in line with the average number of
previous years.

The introduction of PIRs has been a very important
innovation for EQUITA as in the long term more and
more customers will need to use our trading and research
expertise of Italian securities. In relative terms, though,
EQUITA was penalized vis-a-vis other competitors, as our
client-base is more institutional than retail.

The outlook for 2018 confirms the trend of weakening
trading volumes on the Italian MTA, despite good initial
market performances. In 2018, the majority of EQUITA
customers will have to comply with MiFID II. As said
earlier, MiFID II is penalizing specialized and independent
brokers, especially if they offer high-quality research of
small-medium cap companies as EQUITA does. Although
many customers who have adopted this new regulation
have greatly reduced the list of authorized brokers,
EQUITA continues to be the favored supplier of research
for the Italian market for several of them.

EQUITA Finance, Operations and IT
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2. Investment Banking

(a)

Volume and Number of Equity issued - MTA Borsa Italiana
Volume e numero delle azioni emesse – AIM Italia

The volume of transactions completed on the MTA
tripled, from €7.8 bn in 2016 to €23.3 bn in 2017
while the number of the offerings was equal to 44 up
from 20 in 2016. Convertible issues and IPOs showed
the greatest relative increase in the MTA. AIM Italia also
registered a strong increase in volume and in number of
offerings mainly driven by IPOs (especially SPACs) and
Accelerated Book Building (“ABB”), though in smaller
amount.

60
50

20

20

5

2014

2015

2016

Volume of equity offerings (€bn)

Volume
and offerings
Number of Equity
- MTA
Borsa Italiana
SPAC
were issued
the real
engine
of Equity Capital
60
Markets in 2017 as 9 SPACs were listed (1 on MTA
and
(a)
8 on
AIMand
Italia)
for
total
value
of
€1.6
bn
(of
which
Volume
Number
ofaEquity
issued
- MTA
Borsa
Italiana
50
Volume e numero delle azioni emesse – AIM Italia
20
€500 mn on MTA and €1.1 bn on AIM). Equity capital
1.400
40
40
raised by SPACs in 2017 accounted for 28% of total
15
35
1.200
30
IPOs, versus only 10% in 2016.

2015

2016

Volume of equity offerings (€bn)

2017

20

0

15

2013

2014

2015

Volume of equity offerings (€mn)

Number

#

10

2016

20
15
10
5
0

0

Number of equity offerings

FTSE All-Share performance

2014

2013

2014

2015

2016

2015

2016

2017

2017
(a) (b)

80
70
(c )
Total
60 amount and number of deals - Italian M&A market
50
4060
800
3050
600
2040
400
1030
020
200
10
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

0

2017

2013

(a) (b)

#

5

FTSE All-Share performance

0

25

10

Number of equity offerings

200

0

Number

2014

5

€ bn

2013400

30

Number

0

600

Number

800
€ mn

€ bn

5

(a) (b)

Number of Corporate Debt Issues – Institutional Market

25

20

50
45
40
40
30
35
20
30
10
250

2013

2014

2015

2016*

2017

0

(a) Numbers have been collected and elaborated by EQUITA
Tota l amount (€bn)
No. of M&A deals
based on Dealogic and Borsa Italiana data
(b) The sample includes transactions of Italian corporate issues
placed on the Institutional Market

(a)

Volume and Number of Equity issued - MTA Borsa Italiana
Volume e numero delle azioni emesse – AIM Italia

40

1.200

35

800
600
400

60

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)25
20
15
10

50
40

#

30
n

€ mn

42

30
Number

1.000

Total amount and number of deals - Italian M&A market

20

(c )

800

600
400

Number

1.400

#

40
30
€ bn

€ mn

(a) Numbers have been collected and elaborated by EQUITA
based on Dealogic and Borsa Italiana data

1.000

10

0

Number of equity offerings

FTSE All-Share performance

10

15

50

#

45
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
40 Volume of equity offerings (€mn)
Number of equity offerings
35
FTSE All-Share performance
30
25
(a) Numbers
have been collected and elaborated by EQUITA
20 on Dealogic and Borsa Italiana data
based
15
10
Debt Capital
Markets were also very active in 2017 with
5
0
an increase
of the volume of corporate debt issues of
2013with2014
2015 in2016
2017 of issues
101%, coupled
an increase
the number

0

2017

600

200 of Corporate Debt Issues – Institutional Market
Volume

€ bn

2013

20

400

10

0

60

25

800

Number

10

30

1.000

60 of Corporate Debt Issues – Institutional Market
Volume
Number

€ bn

30

Total am

70

40

15

35

of 60%. The investment grade market – the largest in
(a) (b)
of Corporate
DebttoIssues
– Institutional
Marketissues –
terms Number
of volume,
equal
55%
of the total
increased
by 136%.
80

Volume and Number of Equity issued - MTA Borsa Italiana
25

40

1.200

€ bn

In 2017, Investment Banking transactions in Italy
were higher both in number and in overall amount if
compared to 2016 because of the positive trend of
financial markets. Both Equity and Debt Capital Markets
registered an exceptionally high growth.
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In 2017, M&A transactions were almost flat in terms
of number of deals (-1% versus 2016) but significantly
lower in total amount (-27%). FIG transactions accounted
for 36% of the total amount of the Italian M&A market
(10% of total number of transactions).

Introduction
EQUITA Investment Banking business offers an
independent 360° capital markets service and financial
advisory to corporate clients as shown in the picture
below.

Confirming its role as key player in the domestic market,
Investment Banking benefitted from such a positive
environment thus achieving a significant increase in
revenues from €15.9 mn in 2016 to €20.2 mn in 2017,
equal to +27.0%,

Equity Capital Markets
In 2017, the Equity Capital Markets business contributed
for approximately 35% of Investment Banking Net
Revenues.
EQUITA acted as Global Coordinator, Bookrunner and
Sponsor of the €424 mn IPO of Gima TT in the STAR
segment of Borsa Italiana (€1.2 bn market capitalization
at IPO), a landmark transaction for the Italian market.
During the year, EQUITA also contributed to the success
of two leading transactions in the banking sector acting
as Co-Lead Manager in the capital increase of Unicredit
S.p.A. and as Co- Guarantor in the capital increase of
Carige - Cassa di Risparmio di Genova e Imperia S.p.A..
Other selected transactions in the Equity Capital Markets
were:
•• The ABB of Società Cattolica di Assicurazione shares;
•• The ABB of Hera S.p.A. shares by some public
shareholders;
•• The ABB of Datalogic S.p.A. shares;
•• The ABB of Openjobmetis S.p.A. shares;
•• The listing in the STAR segment of Borsa Italiana of
Avio S.p.A. shares;
•• The listing of Space 3 S.p.A.;
•• The listing of B.F. S.p.A. shares.

Debt Capital Markets and Debt Advisory
and Restructuring
In Debt Capital Markets area, EQUITA acted as Sole
Placement Agent and Bookrunner of the €124 mn bond
issue of Mittel S.p.A. and as Joint Lead Manager and
Bookrunner of the €350 mn bond issue of HP Pelzer
Holding GmbH.
With regard to Debt Advisory activities, EQUITA advised
Viscolube S.p.A. and Stirling Square Capital Partners in
the debt raising for the acquisition of Bitolea S.p.A., and
Jeckerson S.p.A. and Axitea S.p.A. in their own debt
restructuring transactions.
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Mergers and Acquisitions

3. Proprietary Trading

In 2017, EQUITA had a leading role in several Mergers
and Acquisitions transactions, though M&A activities
showed a slight decrease in volume, in line with the
overall Italian market trend. In particular, EQUITA acted
as Financial Advisor to:
•• Fri-El Green Power Group in the tender offer
concerning shares of Alerion Clean Power S.p.A.;
•• The independent auditors of Anima Holding S.p.A.
in the partnership agreements with Banco Popolare
and Poste Italiane;
•• J.C. Flowers in the disposal of Eurovita S.p.A. to
Cinven private equity fund;
•• Cassa di Risparmio di Rimini S.p.A. and Cassa di
Risparmio di San Miniato S.p.A. in the disposal of a
majority stake to Credit Agricole Cariparma;
•• Enerco Distribuzione S.p.A. shareholders in defining
strategic options that led to the integration with
Italgas S.p.A.;
•• Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna in the renewal
of the partnership in the insurance industry with
Unipol Sai;
•• Credito Valtellinese S.p.A. in the purchase of a minority
stake in General Finance S.p.A.;

Corporate Broker and Specialist
During 2017, EQUITA progressively consolidated its
positioning in Corporate Broking and Specialist activities
thanks to a focused marketing effort and the deployment
of synergies among the various business areas of the
company.
Well-coordinated internal activities resulted in an
increase in Corporate Broker contracts (+38%) and in
Specialist contracts (+11%).
The Corporate Broking activity is representing more and
more a strategic area especially in terms of cross-selling
and cross-fertilization of other Investment Banking
services and products.

2017 Net Revenues and trading volumes of Proprietary
Trading were higher than the ones registered in 2016.
More specifically, revenues were up by 56.3% (€9.7
mn in 2017 versus €6.2 mn in 2016).
2017 Client-Driven transactions accounted for 45%
of Total Revenues while the remaining 56% related to
Directional transactions. In 2016, the split between
Client-Driven Total Revenues and Directional Total
Revenues was 51%-49%.
Profitability, compared to the previous year, showed
a different distribution among the various operating
strategies. In particular, the out-performance of
Directional trading was significant, followed by the
improvement in the Client-Driven segment and the
Market Maker activity in the derivatives market. On the
other hand, the activity of Risk Arbitrage and M&A on
the Italian, European and North American markets fell
slightly.
Proprietary Trading was engaged in 300 Specialist
Contracts (23 more than in 2016, or 8.3% higher).
It acted as a provider of liquidity to corporate bonds,
certificates and other instruments listed on the MOT,
SeDeX and EuroTLX. The Company also performed the
role of Assigned Operator on behalf of 8 SGRs (2 more
than in 2016) within the Open Funds market and ETFPlus
segment, providing quotes for 32 funds.
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In terms of risk, the portfolio was monitored daily for
both macro asset classes and overall. More specifically, the
asset class “Equity and Equity-Like” is subject to the limits
of Net Worst Case while the “Non-Equity” asset class is
limited to VaR. The overall risk of the portfolio, on the
other hand, is expressed in terms of Gross Worst Case.
During 2017, all the parameters described above were
always lower than the limits established by the Board of
Directors.

4. Alternative Asset Management
Introduction
In May 2017, EQUITA SIM implemented the
reorganization of its shareholding structure, leading
to the establishment of a holding company, EQUITA
Group that owns 100% share capital of EQUITA SIM.
Within the new group structure, a new Alternative Asset
Management business area was created. This business
unit is dedicated to traditional Asset Management
activities and to the development of Private Equity and
Private Debt initiatives, involving third-party investors.
In addition to the Private Debt business established in 2016,
via the fund managed in partnership with Lemanik (Equita
Private Debt), this newly created area manages, on behalf
of EQUITA Group, the recently listed €150 mn EPS Equita
PEP SPAC S.p.A..
The Alternative Asset Management business area is
organized in three main areas as described in the picture
below.

Portfolio Management
As previously described, the Italian Stock Market
recorded a positive performance in 2017. The FTSE MIB
index closed with an increase of +13.6%, while the
FtseMid Cap recorded an increase of +32.3% against
+7.7% of the Eurostoxx600 and +22.2% of the MSCI
Small Cap Euro, respectively.
The mid-small caps indexes definitely outperformed
the blue chips because of the increasing demand of
PIRs (“Piani Individuali di Risparmio”) that attracted
approximately €11 bn of new funding. In addition, the
negative performance of banks and insurance companies
had only a limited impact on the mid-small caps as their
index is more exposed to the performance of industrial
securities.
Net inflows during the year were particularly high
(approximately €85 mn, equal to 27% of the initial assets
under management), due to the excellent performance
achieved in the past and the general interest of investors
in mid-small caps. At year-end, our Assets Under
Management (“AUM”) amounted to €404 mn as a
result of the combined impact of price increase of the
securities underlying our portfolios and net inflows.
Renewed investors’ interest for
Italian small-mid caps

€430
€404

€400
AUM (€mln)

The Bond book focused its activity on bank issues, betting
on the improvement of the sector and therefore on a
decline in yields.

€370

Outstanding
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€280

€292

€250
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The Asset Management team manages three different
portfolio lines on behalf of an institutional client:
•• Opportunity
•• Top selection
•• Mid-small equity
The average performance of the three lines, weighted
on AUM, was equal to +18.14%.
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Private Debt
In 2017 the Italian private debt market showed a positive
trend; a few, selected funds reached their final closing
boosting the growth of the asset class versus banking
lending. According to AIFI (Italian Private Equity, Venture
Capital and Private Debt Association), at year-end 2017,
19 funds had reached their first and/or final closing with
total commitments of over €1.7 bn.
In 2017, EQUITA Private Debt Fund (the ”Fund”)
consolidated its good results achieved in 2016 both in
terms of fundraising and new investments. In particular,
on September 15th, 2017 the Fund reached its Final
Closing at €100 mn. This result was achieved thanks to
the contribution of both new institutional investors and
of the existing investors that decided to increase their
initial commitment, based on the results achieved by the
management team of the Fund.
The graph below shows the breakdown of the Fund
Investors by type. It is worth mentioning that Fondo
Italiano d’Investimento SGR, on behalf of FoF Private
Debt, increased its initial commitment by 33%, while
other existing leading existing institutional investors
increased their commitment of up to two times the
initial amounts.
EQUITA SIM contributed for €5.0 mn while fund
managers and some members of the EQUITA Group
Board of Directors subscribed €1.25 mn.

Breakdown of Fund's Investor by type
HNWI
Asset Mgmt
1% Corp.
2%
1%
Family Office
4%
Associated
Investors (a)
6%

Banks
30%

(a) EQUITA SIM, fund management and some members of
EQUITA Group Board of Directors

In terms of deployment, the management continued to be
very selective with respect to the issuers’ creditworthiness
and to focus on Fund’s returns.
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Lastly, in December 2017, the Fund subscribed €6.0 mn
(and committed an additional €1.5 mn) of Senior Notes
issued by a company, leader in the manufacturing of
armoured glasses for the automotive, marine, military
and architectural sectors. In addition, in December 2017,
there was an early redemption of the notes issued by BV
Tech S.p.A.. The total invested in the Private Debt Fund
year-end was €27.3 mn (including €1.5 mn committed).
The weighted average gross return of portfolio was
approximately 9% in 2017.
Meanwhile, the deal sourcing activity by the investment
team continued, aimed at consolidating the strategy to
build up the portfolio of the Fund’s investments in line
with the three years investment period as provided for by
the Offering Memorandum. In particular, in December
2017, the Fund committed to subscribe €6.0 mn of
senior subordinate notes and an additional €1.0 mn of
newly issued shares of CRM, an Italian company leader in
the production of flat bread “piadine”, whose clients are
leading mass-market retailers. The transaction, which is
led by an Italian private equity fund, was completed in
February 2018, taking the total investments to €34.3
mn.

Private Equity
Fund of Funds
40%

Insurance
16%

More specifically, during 2017, the Fund invested a total
of €5.0 mn in senior notes issued by L’Isolante K-Flex,
a leading global company operating in the elastomeric
insulation sector with revenues of approximately €338.0
mn and EBITDA of approximately €65.7 mn in 2016.
Furthermore, as expected, Schema L S.p.A., the parent
company of Lameplast Group active in the management
of integrated services for companies operating in the
pharmaceutical sector, issued in July 2017 an additional
€2.0 mn of the same notes already in the Fund Portfolio.
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Within Alternative Asset Management, the Private
Equity team is responsible for identifying investment
products and opportunities with the involvement of
third-party investors. In March 2017, EQUITA announced
the creation of Equita PEP Holding S.r.l., a 50/50 joint
private capital initiative of EQUITA Group S.p.A. and
Private Equity Partners S.p.A. (“PEP”). The first initiative
of the new entity was the promotion of a Special Purpose
Acquisition Vehicle (“SPAC”). On July 28th, 2017, Borsa
Italiana released the admission decision to trading the
ordinary shares and warrants of EPS Equita PEP SPAC
S.p.A. (“EPS”) on AIM Italia. 15 mn ordinary shares
of EPS were allocated to Institutional Investors at €10/
share for a total of €150 mn. On August 1st, 2017, the
shares of EPS started trading (BIT: EPS).

In addition to the 15 mn ordinary shares of EPS placed
in the market, the Sponsors – Equita PEP Holding S.r.l.,
EQUITA SIM S.p.A., Stefano Lustig and Rossano Rufini –
subscribed 400.000 special shares (not listed) for a total
value of €4.0 mn.
On January 19th, 2018, EPS announced the business
combination between EPS and Industrie Chimiche
Forestali S.p.A. (“ICF”), a leading Italian producer of
fabrics for toe puffs and counters and of adhesives for
the footwear, leather goods, automotive, packaging,
and upholstered furniture industries.
The transaction shall consist of the acquisition by EPS
of 100% of the share capital of ICF for €69.1 mn. PEP
and 12 ICF managers (including the CEO, Mr. Cami)
will become shareholders of EPS (to be renamed “ICF
Group”) through a paid-in share capital increase of
€5.1 mn, thus fully aligning their interests to the ones
of the other shareholders. EPS will maintain 100%
control of ICF, which will become a public company with
approximately 90% free float.

EPS Shareholders’ Meeting on February 26th, 2018
approved the business combination between EPS and ICF
with a large majority (over 88% of attendees).
The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting will be held on
March 15th, 2018 and will have to approve:
(i)

The partial and proportional spin-off of EPS in
favour of EPS2;

(ii) The adoption of the new By-Laws with effect from
the effective date of the business combination
between EPS and ICF; and
(iii) The paid-in share capital increase reserved to PEP
and 12 ICF managers, including the CEO Mr. Guido
Cami, thus completing the business combination
approval process.

The assets – remaining after the completion of the
acquisition of ICF – will be given to EPS Equita PEP SPAC2
S.p.A. (“EPS2”), which will be listed on AIM Italia.

Proprietary Trading Area
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EQUITA Research Team

50

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

5. Research Team
EQUITA connects its Institutional and Corporate Clients

Number of sponsored meetings

The team of analysts provides: a) analysis of financial
markets and of listed securities issued by companies;
b) research to EQUITA Group clients; c) internal support
to the four business areas of the Group. In 2017,
the number of analysts in this area was 14, of which
11 mainly focus on domestic securities and 3 on the
European ones. During the year, the Research Team
initiated the coverage of 6 new companies, among which
GIMA TT for which EQUITA acted as Global Coordinator
in the company’s IPO. At year-end, the overall number of
companies covered amounted to 164, of which 117 in
Italy and 47 in Europe, up from 158 in 2016.
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145
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149

Substantial increase
of sponsored
meetings

+11%
2016

2017

The research department published more than 500
reports, in line with the previous year and organized 166
meetings in which listed companies met institutional
investors, up from 149 in 2016 (+11%). Some of these
meetings were part of broader sector conferences
organized in Milan and abroad (London, Frankfurt,
etc.). The number of conferences increased from 5 in
2016 to 7 in 2017 as EQUITA organised 2 additional
events, one dedicated to infrastructures in London and
one to PIR in Milan.
As a result of the quality of the service provided, the
analyst team was ranked first by Institutional Investor
and second by Extel.
Recommended portfolios managed by the Research
Team showed on average very good results:
•• Blue chips portfolio: +18.4% in absolute term and
–0.7% versus FTSE MIB Total Return;
•• Mid-small portfolio: +52.0% in absolute term and
+12.6% versus FTSE Mid Cap Total Return;
•• Foreign portfolio: +26.4% in absolute term and
+17.6% versus Eurostoxx600.
Finally, the “2017 Best Picks” provided highly positive
results in particular thanks to Technogym (+90%),
Interpump (+79%), Ferrari (+60%), Wirecard (+53%),
Fineco (+40%) and TUI (+32%).
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Company’s Performance
Income Statement
(Reclassified)

Reclassified Income
Statement (€)

2017 Net Consolidated Profit was €11 mn, compared to
€8.8 mn in 2016.
All business areas showed double-digit growth compared
to 2016, with the exception of Sales and Trading, which
recorded a reduction in revenues for the phenomena
described previously.
The positive performance of the Group is showed by its
capital ratios, which ranked at its maximum levels: CET1
and Total Capital Ratio (“TCR”) at 29.8%, reflecting also
the impact of proceeds from IPO.
Net Revenues increased, especially during the second
half of the year, thanks to the good performance of the
financial markets as mentioned in the macroeconomic
section. The Net Revenues – generated by the four
business areas – were more balanced in 2017 than in
the previous year. Sales and Trading accounted for 39%
(50% in 2016), Investment Banking for 37% (33% in
2016), Proprietary Trading for 18% (13% in 2016) and
Alternative Asset Management for 6% (4% in 2016), as
shown by the graph below:

39%

18%

Sales and Trading

2017

2016

Delta

Sales and Trading

20,773,199

24,382,249

(15%)

Investment Banking

20,199,850

15,873,475

27%

Proprietary Trading

9,684,167

6,194,506

56%

Alternative Asset
Management

3,239,355

2,062,727

57%

53,896,571

48,512,959

11%

Administrative Expenses

(38,373,822) (35,190,077)

9%

Of which compensation

(26,425,422) (24,476,020)

8%

Net Revenues

Other Expenses

(157,575)

30,400

n,s,

Profit before Taxes

15,365,174

13,353,282

15%

Income Taxes

(4,349,344)

(4,546,663)

-4%

Net Profit

11,015,831

8,806,619

25%

The Sales and Trading area recorded a decrease of
Net Revenues equal to -15% (revenues refer to trading
activities on behalf of third parties) as budgeted.
The Investment Banking area recorded a €4.3 mn
increase in revenues, mostly due to the exceptional
performance of the Equity Capital Markets area.
The Proprietary Trading area recorded in 2017
revenues of about €3.5 mn higher than 2016, as a result
of the continuous effort to balance the client-driven
portfolio (characterized by a very low level of risk) with
our directional portfolio. As of December 31st, 2017,
the client-driven portfolio represented 45% (including
specialist revenues) of the total portfolio. According to
Assosim ranking, Proprietary Trading on the Italian MTA
by EQUITA in 2017 represented 0.54% of total volumes,
up 54.7% if compared to 2016.

2017
6%

For a more complete analysis of EQUITA performance,
the Income Statement has been reclassified. It better
represents the contribution of each business line to
EQUITA Net Revenues, as shown in the following table:

37%

The Alternative Asset Management area was
positively influenced by:

Investment Banking
Proprietary Trading

2016

Alternative Asset Mgmt

4%
13%

50%

•• Developments in the Private Debt fund, after the
closing of the fund’s subscriptions at the end of
the third quarter, and the beginning of investment
activities;
•• Asset Under Management with fees increasing in line
with assets under management;

33%

52

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

•• Private Equity revenues of €0.2 mn for the advisory
activity related to the establishment and placement
of EPS Equita PEP SPAC S.p.A..

Total Net Revenues amounted to €53.9 mn, an 11%
increase compared to December 31st, 2016.

2017 Events

Total Administrative Expenses amounted to €38.4 mn,
compared to €35.2 mn in 2016 (+9%). The increase of
€3.2 mn was due to:

Merger by incorporation of Manco
S.p.A. in EQUITA Group S.p.A.
(formerly Turati 9 S.p.A.)

•• Fixed component of personnel costs (+7%), because
of the hiring of new resources and the launch of a
new corporate welfare plan;
•• Variable component of personnel costs (+9%),
because of a better performance of most business
lines;
•• Higher costs for the technological infrastructure,
rental of new spaces in the building, IPO and
professional consultancy services related to the
company reorganization for approximately €0.7 mn.
2017 Total Compensation as a percentage of Net
Revenues was equal to 49% compared to 50% of
the previous year, while the variable component as a
percentage of Total Compensation was equal to 49%,
substantially in line with the previous year.
2017 Other Expenses increased by €0.2 mn compared
to 2016. They included value adjustments on receivables
(increased cost by €0.1 mn), value adjustments on
Tangible Assets and Intangible Assets (increased cost by
€0.3 mn) and non-recurring income (increased income
by €0.2 mn that includes the reimbursement from the
“Gestione speciale” of the Fondo Nazionale di Garanzia
approved by it in July 2017).

During the first half of 2017, EQUITA Group implemented
the reorganization of the Group ownership structure,
launched in 2015. In particular, the project concerned the
merger by incorporation into EQUITA Group (formerly
Turati 9 S.p.A.) of the minority shareholder Manco
S.p.A., effective from July 1st, 2017 and backdated to
May 1st, 2017.
Manco S.p.A. held 49.5% of the shares of EQUITA SIM.
Following this corporate transaction, EQUITA Group
became the sole shareholder of EQUITA SIM.
The transaction took place through the issue of new
shares by EQUITA Group to the shareholders of Manco
S.p.A. The exchange ratio was 0.2617. The ratio provided
a negative merger reserve of approximately €0.6 mn.
As a result of the transaction described above, the
number of shares amounted to 45,412,185, with no par
value and corresponding to €10.0 mn of share capital.

2016 Inspection of Bank of Italy

•• Elimination of the corporate tax surcharge (3.5%),
following the approval of the “Legge di Stabilità” in
the Italian Parliament;

As anticipated in the 2016 financial statements, Bank
of Italy conducted an inspection at EQUITA SIM as
provided by the Article 10 of Legislative Decree no. 58
of 24.02.1998. The outcome of such inspection was
notified on April 3rd, 2017 with a “partially favourable”
result. Subsequently, the Company implemented the
corrective actions identified with the Inspection.

•• ACE (“Aiuto alla Crescita Economica”) benefit of
approximately €250k recorded in the 2016 EQUITA
Group income tax filing;

Enfranchisement of the goodwill

In 2017, EQUITA effective tax rate was 28%, lower than
the one recorded in 2016 (34%) because of:

•• The effect of National Tax Consolidation rules that
generated a benefit at group level for €360K.

With regards to the separate financial statements,
EQUITA Group S.p.A. has enfranchised the higher
values of the goodwill, brand and contracts through the
payment of the 16% substitute tax (“Tassa Sostitutiva”).
These intangibles were accounted for in the EQUITA
Group Financial Statements as of December 31st, 2016
and refer to the participation in EQUITA SIM S.p.A.(1)

(1) Limited to 50.5% stake in EQUITA SIM S.p.A., purchased on January 25th, 2016.
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The substitute tax paid was accounted for 2017 as a
current tax advance.(2) Therefore, in 2017 EQUITA Group
S.p.A. recorded a fifth of the cost incurred in terms of
substitute tax on the income statement, while the residual
current tax advance was recognized in the balance sheet
assets. In the next years, EQUITA Group will record the
tax benefit in the income statement, as the difference
between the tax amortization of intangible assets and
the fifth of substitute tax paid.

Comply with Tax Consolidation
Agreement
On October 23rd, 2017, EQUITA Group S.p.A. and
EQUITA SIM S.p.A. signed the National Tax Consolidation
Agreement. The Tax Consolidation provides for an optional
regime for group taxation, which consists in determining
a single taxable income for the entire group at the parent
company level – corresponding to the sum of the total net
income of the members – and a single income tax (IRES)
for the group companies. The consolidating company
(EQUITA Group S.p.A.), as stated in Article 5.1.3 of the
Agreement, will have to pay the group tax to the Italian
Tax Authority, while the consolidated company (EQUITA
SIM S.p.A.) will have to guarantee the necessary funds
for the payment of the taxes that pertain to itself. The
Agreement is effective starting from the 2017 fiscal year
and its renewal is annual.

EQUITA Group S.p.A. listing on the
AIM Italia
On November 23rd, 2017, EQUITA Group was listed
on the AIM Italia under the ticker symbol EQUI. The
transaction consisted in the placement of 15.6 mn
shares at €2.90/share, resulting in a €45.2 mn IPO. All
IPO shares were allocated to Institutional Investors (no
retail component).
The opening price of the first day of trading was €2.97.
As of February 28th, 2018, EQUI always traded above
either the IPO Price or the opening price of the first day
of trading.
As of February 28th, 2018, EQUI stock price was up
6.9% since the IPO, thus out-performing both FTSE
AIM (-0.3%) and FTSE STAR (-0.5%). The average daily
trading volume of EQUI is approximately 140,000 shares
(9% of the free float).
Finally, as of February 28Th, 2018 EQUI Total Capitalization
was equal to €136 mm.

Registration in the register of the
SIM groups
As of November 10th, 2017 (provision No. 1338156),
EQUITA Group is registered in the special register of Bank
of Italy for the Groups of SIM and subject to consolidated
supervision pursuant to Article 12 of the TUF (“Testo
Unico Servizi Finanziari”). Therefore, EQUITA Group S.p.A.
became the parent company of the SIM Group.
Acting as the parent company, EQUITA Group S.p.A.
carries out management and coordination activities and
issues the provisions for the individual members of the
Group for the execution of the instructions issued by
Bank of Italy.

(2) “The current tax advance is considered an asset; it can be accounted for in the balance sheet when its future economic benefits
are highly probable (i.e.: the reduction of the future tax burden) and the asset has a certain cost or value (or the substitute tax
paid).”– OIC – Series IAS / IFRS Applications –. 1 of 2009

54

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

equal to €136 mm.
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Balance Sheet Reclassified – (Emn)
Assets

2017

2016

Delta

Delta %

Financial Assets held for trading

47.3

38.8

8.5

22%

Financial Assets held for sale and
equity investments

3.5

0.4

3.0

735%

Due from banks and customers

160.0

151.8

8.2

5%

Tangible and Intangible Assets

14.2

14.0

0.2

2%

6.3

6.0

0.3

5%

Other Assets

14.9

7.2

7.8

109%

Total Assets

246.3

218.2

28.2

13%

Liabilities and Net Worth

2017

2016

Delta

Delta %

Due to banks

129.1

125.0

4.1

3%

14.6

14.1

0.6

4%

1.2

1.9

(0.7)

-37%

13.9

13.4

0.5

4%

Employee termination indemnities (“TFR”)

2.0

4.2

(2.2)

-53%

Allowances for risks and charges

6.3

8.1

(1.8)

-22%

79.0

51.4

27.5

54%

–

23.5

(23.5)

-100%

246.3

218.2

28.2

13%

Tax Assets

Financial Liabilities held for Trading
Tax Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Net Equity
Minority Interests
Total Liabilities
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Financial Assets held for trading increased by €8.5
mn due to a stronger activity in Proprietary Trading. In
particular, long exposures increased in unstructured
debt securities (€3.7 mn), equities (€4.9 mn), favoring
instruments listed on active markets, and derivatives
(€0.5 mn). On the other hand, the exposure in structured
securities and UCITS (3) units decreased (€0.6 mn).
Financial Liabilities held for trading increased by
€0.6 mn; more specifically, the short position in equity
instruments increased by €0.8 mn while short positions
in derivatives decreased by €0.2 mn compared to 2016.
Financial Assets available for sale and equity
investments represent the investment in the EQUITA
private debt fund for approximately €1.3 mn and €0.8
mn in special shares of EPS Equita PEP SPAC S.p.A.,
through EQUITA SIM. In addition, this balance sheet item
also includes 50% of EQUITA Group’s shareholding in
the Equita PEP Holding joint venture for €1.33 mn for
the purchase of €1.30 mn special shares of EPS Equita
PEP SPAC S.p.A., in Equita PEP Holding’s portfolio.
Due from banks and customers increased by €8.2 mn
compared to 2016, because of IPO proceeds of €22.1 mn
(net of €0.7 mn IPO related costs). The outflows of the
year refer to a €5.0 mn loan reimbursement subscribed
in 2016 by EQUITA Group S.p.A. and to a decrease in the
bank accounts balances of over €8.9 mn recorded by
EQUITA SIM as a result of year-end operations.
Intangible Assets, which increased by approximately
€0.2 mn, include the capitalization of the set-up cost
(€0.4 mn) for the new front office system, which became
operative on July 1st, 2017. This increase was partially
offset by the amortization (€0.2 mn) of the contracts
identified during the Purchase Price Allocation process
(“PPA”). Tangible assets, substantially flat compared to
2016, include equipment and other assets in operation
since 2017, following the restructuring process started
in 2016 and ended in the first months of the current
year.
Other Assets, which increased by approximately €7.8
mn compared to December 31st, 2016, mainly reflect the
increase in receivables from the Central Counterparty
Clearing House (“CCP”) for derivative transactions.
Due to banks shows an increase of approximately €4.1
mn compared to December 31st, 2016 at consolidated
level. The increase was due to lending and derivatives
transactions, for €9.1 mn compared to 2016, partially
offset by the reimbursement of the loans of €5.0 mn.
During the first half of 2017, two new credit lines for
approximately €10.0 mn were opened to support the
increasing volume of business activities. These credit
lines were reduced in accordance with business needs,
in the first months of the second half of 2017.

(3) ”Undertakings for Collective Investment of Savings”
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Other Liabilities increased by approximately €0.5 mn
mainly because of the component of IT leases.
The reduction of €2.2 mn in the Employee Termination
Indemnities (“TFR”) mainly refers to the payment of the
portion due to certain employees who left the company
in the second half of the year.
Allowances for Risks and Charges contain the
deferred portion, of the variable remuneration paid to
staff, as required by the CRD IV Directive. The reduction
of €1.8 mn compared to the previous year is due to the
effect of the payment in 2017 of the variable deferred
component set aside in 2016, offset by the provision
recorded at the end of 2017.
As of December 31st, 2017, the share capital of EQUITA
Group S.p.A. amounted to €11,376,345 (of which
€1,376,345 at the IPO) for no. 50,000,000 shares, with
no par value.
Total IPO shares allocated to the market amounted to
15,585,261 (both primary and secondary shares) as
described in the table below:

Number of
Shares

Gross
Proceeds
(€mn)

Management and
Existing Shareholders

7,697,446

22.3

New Issued Shares

4,587,815

13.3

Treasury Shares

3,300,000

9.6

15,585,261

€45.2

Total IPO Shares

As of December 31st, 2017, Treasury Shares amounted
to E4.7 mn (4,889,025 shares at the IPO minus 141,000
shares given to current employees after the IPO at €1/
share).
As a result of the IPO, the placement of the share
generated a share premium reserve of €18.2 mn.

As of December 31st, 2017, the Other Reserves
amounted to €43.1 mn and refered to:
•• +€35.4 mn, deriving from the reclassification of
a part of the post-merger share capital of Manco
S.p.A.;
•• -€0.6 mn related to the negative merger reserve;
•• +€2.0 mn retained earnings net of dividend paid in
the year;
•• -€1.0 mn listing and FTA costs;
•• +€7.3 mn consolidation reserve;
Net income for 2017 was €11.0 mn, a 25% increase
versus 2016.
Return on Tangible Equity (“ROTE”) (4) was 17% in
2017 versus 23% in 2016 due to the increase in equity
value following the IPO.
As of December 31st, 2017, the Total Capital Ratio
(“TCR”) was equal to 29.8%, higher than 2016 TCR
of 10%. Such a strong increase of the TCR was only
partially reduced by the negative impact of the increase
in RWAs (“Risk Weighted Assets”) due to a greater
exposure to equity instruments and the updating of
operational risk. For quantitative details, please refer
to “Section 3 – Information on Equity” in Notes to the
Financial Statements.

New products and main initiatives during
the Year
In 2017, EQUITA product offering related to the final
capital raising of the Private Debt fund, which collected
subscriptions for €100 mn by September 15, 2017.
Furthermore, as part of the reorganization of the
Alternative Asset Management area, EQUITA introduced
a new business initiative related to the establishment of
a SPAC, EPS Equita PEP SPAC S.p.A., listed on the AIM
Italia on August 1st, 2017. For more details, refer to the
specific section of this document.

Information about personnel and the
environment
The Company operates in a sector with low environmental
impact and complies with current regulations on safety
and work environment. As of December 31st, 2017,
EQUITA workforce consisted of 120 employees, of whom
17 qualified as managers. During the course of 2017, 18
people were hired, while 5 people left the company.

Main risks and uncertainties
The most important risks relate to the market context in
which the Company operates as it drives both the fee
component and trading activities. Such risks depend
upon external variables which final impact on company
results is of difficult prediction, although these do not
jeopardize the requirement of business continuity.
Number and nominal value of treasury shares and
of shares or quotas of parent companies owned by
the Company, including by way of a trust company
or intermediary, indicating the corresponding
percentage of capital
Pursuant to paragraph 3, point 3 of article 2428 of the
Italian Civil code it is hereby stated that EQUITA Group
holds 4,748,025, equal to approximately 9.5%, of all
the shares representative of share capital.
In addition, in the held-for-trading portfolio the
subsidiary EQUITA SIM holds 261 shares of the parent
company EQUITA Group S.p.A. purchased at a price of
€2.90 on November 23rd 2017 (the day of listing on
the AIM) and relating to the “splits” resulting from the
allocation on the issue of these shares on the primary
market (minimum lot 500 shares).
Number and nominal value of treasury shares and
shares or quotas of parent companies purchased
or disposed of by the Company during the year,
including by way of a trust company or intermediary,
indicating the corresponding percentage of capital,
the amounts paid or received and the reasons for
the purchases and disposals
Pursuant to paragraph 3, point 4) of article 2428 of the
Italian Civil code it is hereby stated that EQUITA Group
holds 4,748,025 treasury shares equal to approximately
9.5% of all the shares representative of share capital.
During the year, as part of the operation to buy out noncontrolling interests, the Company purchased 8,189,025
treasury shares (16.4% of the shares representative of
share capital) at a unit price of €1 and during the IPO sold
3,300,000 shares (6.6% of the shares representative of
share capital) at a price of €2.90/share and subsequently
sold a further 141,000 shares (0.3% of the shares
representative of share capital) at a price of €1.00/share
to the employees of EQUITA SIM S.p.A..
In addition, in the held-for-trading portfolio the
subsidiary EQUITA SIM holds 261 shares of the parent
company EQUITA Group S.p.A. purchased at a price of
€2.90/share on November 23rd, 2017 (the day of listing
on the AIM) and relating to the “splits” resulting from
the allocation on the issue of these shares on the primary
market (minimum lot 500 shares).

(4) Tangible Book value as of December 31st, 2017.
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Information on risk management and
coverage
The corporate risks are assessed by the members of the
Board of Directors on an annual basis within the ICAAP
process. They are also reviewed periodically as part of
the normal monitoring activity.
The most significant risks identified in the ICAAP process
are market risk and credit/counterparty risk. In light
of the analyses carried out during the ICAAP process
– supported also by internal or alternative models as
well as by stress test analysis – the overall exposure of
the Company is adequately monitored. The needs of
total internal capital are adequately guaranteed by the
Company own funds.

Other Information
Research and development activities
According to Paragraph 3, point 1) of the art. 2428 of
the Civil Code, it should be noted that during the year
no research and development activity was undertaken.

Relations with related parties
According to Paragraph 3, point 2) of the art. 2428 of
the Civil Code, we hereby declare that in 2017, relations
with related parties refer to intercompany service
contracts with:
•• Equita SIM S.p.A.;
•• Equita PEP Holding S.r.l.
in addition to the compensation paid to managers with
strategic responsibilities during 2017. For more details,
please refer to “Section 6 – Transactions with related
parties” of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Alternative Asset Management team
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Net Worth, Treasury Shares and Lock-up Agreement
Following the corporate reorganization and the IPO, the share capital consists of 50,000,000 ordinary shares (at the
IPO), broken down as shown in the following table as of November 23rd, 2017 (day of listing on AIM Italia):

Shareholders
Fabio Deotto
Matteo Ghilotti
Stefano Lustig
Francesco Perilli
Andrea Vismara
Other Shareholders (3)
Treasury Shares

Ordinary
Shares (1)

Multiple
Voting
Rights Shares (2)

Total No.
of Shares

as a % of
Total Shares

as a % of
Voting
Rights

748,641

891,259

1,639,900

3.3%

4.7%

1,068,893

971,082

2,039,975

4.1%

5.6%

856,778

687,953

1,544,731

3.1%

4.2%

3,793,114

1,908,330

5,701,444

11.4%

14.2%

1,109,098

2,053,570

3,162,668

6.3%

9.7%

10,908,439
–

1,955,207

12,863,646

25.7%

4,889,025

9.8%

27.7%
–

2,573,350

5.1%

4.8%

Nicla Srl

2,573,350

4,889,025
–

Flottante

15,585,261

–

15,585,261

31.2%

29.1%

Total

36,643,574

13,356,426

50,000,000

100.0%

100.0%

(1) Ordinary Shares are Class A shares and are listed on AIM Italia (BIT: EQUI)
(2) Multiple Voting Rights shares are not listed.
(3) Employees as of November 23st, 2017

IPO total proceeds amounted to €44.4 mn, of which €22.1 mn (net of IPO fees) to the company and €22.3 mn
to existing shareholders. The lock-up agreement for employees was set between 24 and 48 months. After the IPO,
141,000 shares were given to EQUITA current employees at €1.0/share.

Additional Offices
EQUITA GROUP and EQUITA SIM do not have additional registered offices as per art. 2848 of Italian Civil code.
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Financial statements
Balance sheet
Assets (E)

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

816

2,740

10.

Cash and cash equivalents

20.

Financial assets held for trading

47,322,106

38,757,296

40.

Available-for-sale financial assets

2,154,394

413,725

60.

Loans and receivables

159,959,894

151,809,708

90.

Equity investments

1,330,919

0

100.

Property, plant and equipment

110.

Intangible assets

120.

140.

602,655

591,526

13,654,486

13,454,650

Tax assets

6,315,295

5,994,060

a) current

4,275,338

3,117,242

b) deferred

2,039,957

2,876,818

Other assets

14,939,114

7,152,572

Total assets

246,279,679

218,176,277

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

129,136,377

125,032,545

14,625,536

14,059,847

1,243,014

1,898,382

503,407

1,036,469

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity (E)
10.

Payables

30.

Financial trading liabilities

70.

Tax liabilities

70a.

a) current

70b.

b) deferred

90.

Other liabilities

100.
110.

739,607

861,913

13,979,502

13,456,441

Employees’ termination indemnities

1,970,684

4,160,648

Allowances for risks and charges

6,344,994

8,130,629

b) other allowances

6,344,994

8,130,629

120.

Share capital

11,376,345

19,240,000

130.

Treasury shares (-)

(4,748,025)

0

150.

Share premium reserve

18,198,319

0

160.

Other reserves

43,137,103

(91,435)

180.

Net Profit (loss) for the year

11,015,831

8,806,619

190.

Minority interests
246,279,679

218,176,277

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
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23,482,601

Income statement
Income statement (E)

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

10.

Net trading income

9,230,158

4,799,565

50.

Commission income

47,134,764

45,096,830

60.

Commission expense

(3,573,278)

(3,147,301)

70.

Interest and similar income

187,398

334,082

80.

Interest and similar expense

(1,338,796)

(1,008,138)

90.

Dividends and similar income

2,256,326

2,437,921

53,896,571

48,512,959

100. Net losses/recoveries on impairment of:

(98,782)

35,000

100c. c) other financial assets

(98,782)

35,000

110. Administrative expenses

(38,373,822)

(35,233,077)

120a. a) personnel expenses

(27,252,750)

(25,305,678)

120b. b) other administrative expenses

(11,121,071)

(9,927,399)

120. Net (losses) recoveries on impairment of tangible assets

(146,807)

(103,979)

130. Net (losses) recoveries on impairment of intangible assets

(314,333)

(24,489)

0

(160,556)

402,124

327,424

15,364,951

13,353,282

223

0

15,365,174

13,353,282

(4,349,344)

(4,546,663)

Net Profit (loss) on ordinary operations after tax

11,015,831

8,806,619

Net Profit (loss) for the year

11,015,831

8,806,619

Net Revenues

150. Net accruals to provisions
160. Other operating income and expense
Operating income
170. Profit (loss) on equity investments
Profit (loss) on ordinary operations before tax
190. Income tax on ordinary operations
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Statement of comprehensive income
Line item (E)
10.

Profit (loss) for the year

2017

2016

11,015,608

8,806,619

11,015,608

8,806,619

Other comprehensive income net of tax that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
20.

Property, plant and equipment

30.

Intangible assets

40.

Defined benefit plans

50.

Non-current assets held for sale

60.

Portion of the valuation reserves – equity accounted investees
Other comprehensive income net of tax that may be reclassified to
profit or loss

70.

Foreign investment hedges

80.

Foreign exchange differences

90.

Cash flow hedges

100. Available-for-sale financial assets
110. Non-current assets held for sale
120. Portion of the valuation reserves – equity accounted investees
130. Total other comprehensive income, net of tax
140. Total comprehensive income (Items 10 + 130)
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Balance at 31.12.2016

(91,435)

19,240,000

4,447,343

51,437,785

4,359,276

Profit (loss) of the
parent company

Shareholders’
equity

23,482,601

Minority interests

–

–

Equity instruments

Treasury shares

Profit (loss) for the
year attributable
to minority
interests

–

Valuation reserves

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

4,359,276

–

–

–

–

51,437,785

–

4,447,343 (4,447,343)

4,359,276 (4,359,276)

23,482,601

–

–

–

–

4,447,343

–

–

Dividends
and other
allocations

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(4,748,025)

–

–

–

–

–

–

Treasury
share
purchases

(8,267,214) ( 4,748,025)

–

–

(27,841,877)

–

–

–

18,198,319

1,376,345

New share
issues

(2,380,625)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(2,380,625)

–

–

Extraordinary
distribution of
dividends

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Changes in
equity
instruments

31,906,023

–

–

–

–

–

–

33,816,377

7,345,444

–

(9,240,000)

Other
changes

11,015,831

11,015,831

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

18,198,319

11,376,345

78,979,572

11,015,831

–

–

(4,748,025)

–

–

33,816,377

9,320,727

–

b) capital reserves

–

–

–

Reserves

Operations on shareholders’ equity

a) revenue
reserves

Adjustments to
opening balances

43,137,103

(91,435)

19,240,000

Balance at
1.01.2017

Changes during the year

Comprehensive income
2017

Reserves:

Share premium
reserve

Share capital

(E)

Allocation of previous
year’s profit

Changes in
reserves

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity – 2017
Balance at 31.12.2017
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Shareholders’
equity
48,535,540

(166,652)

Profit (loss) for the
year

(63,763)

19,240,000

Balance at
01.01.2016

29,525,955

Balance at 31.12.2015

Equity attributable to minority
interests

Equity instruments

Valuation reserves

b) capital reserves

a) revenue reserves

Reserves:

Share premium
reserve

Share capital

(E)

Adjustments to
opening balances

Reserves

Dividends
and other
allocations

Allocation of previous
year’s profit

138,980

138,980

New share
issues

Treasury
share
purchases

Extraordinary
distribution of
dividends

Changes in
equity
instruments

Operations on shareholders’ equity

Changes during the year

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity – 2016

Changes in
reserves
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(6,043,354)

166,652

(6,043,354)

(166,652)

Other
changes

Comprehensive income
2016
8,806,619

8,806,619

51,437,785

8,806,619

23,482,601

(91,435)

19,240,000

Shareholders’ equity
at 31.12.2016

Statement of cash flows
(direct method)
A.

Operating activities (E)

1.

Cash from operations
interest received
interest paid
dividends and similar income
commissions, net
losses and recoveries on impairment

2017

2016

17,079,810

16,994,439

187,398

334,082

(1,338,796)

(1,008,138)

2,256,326

2,437,921

43,561,486

41,949,529

(98,782)

35,000

personnel expenses

(21,072,886)

(17,048,547)

other expenses

(10,718,947)

(9,760,531)

8,653,355

4,601,785

(4,349,344)

(4,546,663)

Cash (used) by financial assets

(3,941,011)

(19,062,876)

financial assets held for trading

(7,981,022)

3,361,242

(1,740,669)

(413,725)

due from banks

(430,787)

(18,659,576)

due from financial entities

3,038,858

622,138

due from customers

3,432,594

(27,414)

other assets

(259,985)

(3,945,541)

Cash (used) by financial liabilities

(514,638)

(13,235,313)

due to banks

1,154,713

1,176,257

due to financial entities

7,949,117

(2,965,328)

other income
taxes and duties
profits/losses on discontinued operations after tax
2.

financial assets at fair value
available-for-sale financial assets

3.

due to customers

(10,560)

outstanding securities
financial trading liabilities

565,690

6,658,558

(10,184,158)

(18,094,240)

12,624,162

(15,303,750)

financial liabilities at fair value
other liabilities
Net cash from (used by) operating activities
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B.

Investing activities (E)

1.

Cash from

2017

2016

sale of equity investments
dividends received from equity investments
sale/redemption of held-to-maturity financial assets
sale of property, plant and equipment
sale of intangible assets
sale of business units
2.

Cash used in
purchase of equity investments

(1,330,919)

purchase of held-to-maturity financial assets
purchase of property, plant and equipment

(157,936)

(266,647)

purchase of intangible assets

(514,169)

(51,725)

(2,003,025)

(318,372)

purchase of business units
Cash (used) in investing activities
C.

Financing activities
issue/purchase of treasury shares

14,348,837

issue/purchase of equity instruments
distribution of dividends and other purposes

2,066,718

(5,849,578)

Cash from (used in) financing activities

16,415,554

(12,154,000)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during
the year

27,036,691

(21,471,701)

Reconciliation
Amount (E)
2017

2016

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

(8,493,563)

12,978,138

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year

27,036,691

(21,471,701)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

18,543,155

(8,493,563)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Part A – Accounting principles and policies
A.1 General part
Section 1 – Statement of conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards
In application of Legislative Decree no. 38 of February 28th, 2005 these financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the international accounting standards (IAS/IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the relative interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretation Committee and
adopted by the European Commission as established by Regulation (EU) no. 1606/2002 of July 19th, 2002.
The financial statements for the year ended December 31st, 2017 have been prepared on the basis of the Provision of the
Bank of Italy of December 9th, 2016 “The IFRS financial statements of intermediaries other than bank intermediaries”
(which fully replace that of December 15th 2015 ““Instructions for the preparation of the financial statements and
reports of financial intermediaries, payment institutions, electronic currency institutions, SGRs and SIMs”).
Such Instructions establish binding rules for presenting primary financial statements and the relative means by which
they must be compiled, as well as the contents of the notes to the financial statements.
The IAS/IFRS international accounting standards adopted by the European Commission and effective as of December
31st, 2017 have been used in the preparation of the financial statements (including SIC and IFRIC interpretations) and
a list of these is provided in these financial statements.
Certain accounts forming part of line item 80 – Interest expense and line item 60 – Commission expense were
reclassified for E312,215 in the preparation of the income statement for the year ended December 31st, 2017. These
accounts have also been reclassified in the preparation of the figures for the year ended December 31st, 2016 for
comparative purposes. This reclassification has been made in order to provide a better presentation of the components
of these accounts. The reclassification had no effect on either Net Revenues or profit for 2016.
The following table sets out the new international accounting standards or the amendments to accounting standards
already effective together with the relative adoption regulations issued by the European Commission, which became
effective in 2017.

International accounting standards adopted as of December 31st, 2017 and effective from 2017
Standard name

Effective date

Adoption regulation

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes

January 1 , 2017
Years beginning on or after
January 1st, 2017

1989/2017

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows

January 1st, 2017
Years beginning on or after
January 1st, 2017

1990/2017

st

The accounting standards applicable mandatorily for the first time from 2017 consist of a number of limited
amendments to standards that are already effective, and were adopted by the European Commission in 2017. These
standards are not, however, particularly significant for EQUITA SIM S.p.A..
The following table sets out new international reporting standards or amendments to accounting standards that are
already effective together with the relative adoption regulation issued by the European Commission, which must be
applied from January 1st, 2018 – in the case of financial years coinciding with calendar years – or from the later starting
date in other cases.
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International accounting standards adopted as of December 31st, 2017 with application
subsequent to December 31st, 2017
The new accounting standards adopted by the European Commission in 2016 and 2017 are as follows. Further
information is provided below on those which could have an effect on the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
Standard name

Effective date

Adoption regulation

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

01/01/2018
Years beginning on or after January 1st, 2018

1905/2016

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

01/01/2018
Years beginning on or after January 1st, 2018

2067/2016

IFRS 16 Leases

01/01/2019
Years beginning on or after January 1st, 2019

1986/2017

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

01/01/2018
Years beginning on or after January 1st, 2018

1987/2017

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

01/01/2018
Years beginning on or after January 1st, 2018

1988/2017

New accounting standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014 the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the new accounting standard IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with the aim of introducing new requirements regarding the way in which financial instruments should
be classified and measured, the bases and methods underlying the determination and calculation of impairment losses
and the hedge accounting model. The adoption procedure ended with the issuing of Commission Regulation (EU)
2016/2067 of November 22nd, 2016, published in the Official Journal of the European Union L 323 of November 29th
2016.
IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 and is applicable for financial years beginning on or after January 1st, 2018.
The main changes regard classification and impairment and in particular:
•• the classification and consequent method of measuring financial assets (with the exception of shares) is based
upon the results of two tests, one on the business model and the other on the contractual features of cash flows
(solely payments of principal and interest – the SPPI test). Only instruments that pass both tests can be recognized
at cost otherwise the assets must be recognized at fair value through profit or loss (this category therefore becomes
the residual category). There is then additionally an intermediate category (held to collect and sell) which in the
same way as the present “available-for-sale” portfolio requires measurement at fair value through equity (meaning
other comprehensive income);
•• shares must always be measured at fair value with the possibility for the fair value effects of those not held for
trading to be recognized in an equity reserve (instead of passing through profit or loss); recycling has however been
eliminated, meaning that the effect of disposals is no longer recognized in profit or loss;
•• the new standard passes from the use for accounting purposes of an incurred impairment model to an expected
model; concentrating on expected losses, provisioning will have to be made on the whole of the portfolio (including
that not impaired) and on the basis of forecast information that discounts macroeconomic factors. In particular, on
initial recognition (stage 1) instruments must already take into account expected losses over a time period of 12
months (including those not impaired); on the occurrence of a significant increase in credit risk an asset is classified
in the underperforming portfolio (stage 2) which must take into account expected losses over its lifetime; if there
is a further deterioration the instruments moves to the non-performing portfolio (stage 3) where its final recovery
amount is estimated.
The expected loss must be based on point-in-time data that reflect internal credit monitoring models.
The EQUITA Group will apply the new IFRS model from January 1st, 2018, with the first effects of its application being
on the results for the first quarter of 2018.
At the same time the Group has set up an “assessment” and “implementation” scheme. The “assessment” phase is
moving forward but the first considerations emerging do not indicate any significant effects arising on the measurement
of the Company’s portfolio, as the Group’s activities are concentrated on trading.
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New accounting standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, effective from January 2018, was adopted by way of the publication
of Regulation 1905/2016. From its effective date IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts,
together with the related interpretations.
The changes with respect to the pre-existing discipline can be summarized as follows:
•• the introduction in a single accounting standard of a “common framework” for the recognition of revenue arising
from the sale of goods and the provision of services;
•• the adoption of a step approach for recognizing revenue (see below);
•• a mechanism that can be called “unbundling” for allocating the total price of a transaction to each of the
obligations (sale of goods and/or provision of services) to which the supply contract relates.
In general terms IFRS 15 requires an entity to use an approach based on the following five steps when recognizing
revenue:
1. identification of the contract (or contracts) with the customer: IFRS 15 must be applied to every contract concluded
with a customer and must comply with specific criteria. In certain specific cases IFRS 15 requires an entity to
combine/aggregate several contracts and account for them as a single contract;
2. identification of the performance obligations: a contract represents the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer. If these goods or services are “distinct”, these promises are considered to be performance obligations
and are accounted for separately;
3. determination of the transaction price: the transaction price is the amount of the consideration that the entity
expects to be entitled to in exchange for the promised goods or services. The price provided in the transaction
may be a fixed amount but at times may include variable or non-cash components;
4. allocation of the price of the transaction to the performance obligations of the contract: an entity allocates the
price of the transaction among the various performance obligations on the basis of the standalone selling prices
of each distinct good or service contractually provided for. If a standalone selling price is not observable an entity
must estimate one. The standard explains when an entity must allocate a discount or a variable component to
one or more, but not all, performance obligations (or to the separate goods or services) provided in the contract;
5. recognition of revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied: an entity recognizes revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied through the transfer of a good or the provision of a service, contractually
provided, in favour of a customer (or when the customer obtains control of that good or service). The amount of
the revenue to be recognized is that allocated to the performance obligation that was satisfied. A performance
obligation can be satisfied at a certain point in time (typically the case of the transfer of goods) or over a period of
time (typically the case of the provision of services). In the case of performance obligations satisfied over a period
of time an entity recognizes the revenue over that period, selecting a suitable method for measuring the progress
made towards the complete satisfaction of the obligation.
In addition, Regulation 1987/2017 was adopted in 2017 – this too applicable from January 1st, 2018 – which amends
IFRS 15. The amendments mainly clarify certain aspects of the new standard and provide a series of operational
simplifications useful during the transition phase.
In practice the effects of IFRS 15 will depend on the types of contracts measured (in fact the standard introduces
potential ways of making estimates in determining the transaction price with respect to the variable component) and
the sector in which an entity operates (the main areas concerned appear to be the telecommunications and residential
property sectors).
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In this respect the Company has initiated an analysis of the main categories of revenue it receives from contracts with
customers in order to identify any effects that may arise on the introduction of the new accounting standard. From
the preliminary analyses performed, and in general terms, it has emerged that the accounting treatment of these
categories of revenue already appears to be in line with the requirements of the new standard and as a consequence
no effects of importance should arise at an accounting level.

New accounting standard IFRS 16 Leases
The new accounting standard IFRS 16, adopted in 2017 by way of Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1986 and
applicable from January 1st, 2019, introduces significant changes to the way in which lease arrangements are
recognized in the financial statements of the lessee/user. In particular the main change consists of the elimination
of the distinction between “finance” and “operating” leases as required by IAS 17 (which will be replaced by IFRS
16): all leasing contracts will have to be accounted for as finance leases. For lessee/user entities this will in general
lead – for equal profitability and final cash flows – to an increase in the assets recognized in the financial statements
(leased assets), an increase in liabilities (the amount due for the leased assets), a reduction in operating expenses (lease
instalments) and an increase in interest expense (for the repayment and remuneration of the recognized liability).
The minimum disclosures to be provided by lessee entities will be at least the following:
•• a subdivision between the various “classes” of leased assets
•• an analysis by due date of the relative lease creditors;
•• all the information potentially useful for a better understanding of the entity’s activities with respect to lease
contracts (for example early redemption or extension options).
On the other hand there are no particular changes, apart from the request for increased disclosures, for lessor entities,
for which the current distinction between finance and operating leases remains.
The following table sets out the new international accounting standards or amendments to accounting standards
already effective which have not yet been adopted by the European Commission.

International accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted at 31.12.2017
Standard/interpretation
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Name

Date of publication

IFRIC 22

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

08/12/2016

IFRS 17

Insurance Contracts

18/05/2017

IFRIC 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

07/06/2017
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Standard/interpretation

Name

Date of publication

IFRS 2

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based payment Transactions

20/06/2016

IFRS 1

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards

08/12/2016

IFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

08/12/2016

IAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

08/12/2016

IAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

08/12/2016

IFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

12/10/2017

IAS 28

Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures

12/10/2017

IFRS 3

Business Combination

12/12/2017

IFRS 11

Joint Arrangement

12/12/2017

IAS 12

Income Taxes

12/12/2017

IAS 23

Borrowing Costs

12/12/2017

Section 2 – Basis of preparation
In accordance with article 5, paragraph 2 of Legislative Decree no. 38/2005 these financial statements have been
prepared in euros as the money of account. The financial statements consist of the balance sheet, the income
statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the statement
of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements. They are also accompanied by a directors’ report on the
Group’s operations, its results and its balance sheet and financial position.
These financial statements have been prepared with clarity and give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position, the results of its operations and its cash flows and are based on the application of the following general
principles of preparation contained in the IASB Framework as well as in IAS 1:
Going concern – Assets, liabilities and “off balance sheet” transactions are measured on a going concern basis
because the Group is expected to continue to operate in the future, based on all the available information and taking
as a reference, in accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, a future period of at least but not
limited to 12 months from the balance sheet date.
In preparing the financial statements management has assessed the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
arriving at the conclusion that this assumption is reasonable as there is no reasonable doubt in this respect.
Accrual basis of accounting – Income and expense are recognized when they occur, regardless of when the
corresponding balances are settled, and in accordance with the matching principle.
Consistency of presentation – The presentation and classification of items are kept constant over time to ensure
comparability of information, unless changes are required by an IFRS or an interpretation or if it makes the representation
of the amounts more appropriate in terms of relevance and reliability. If a presentation or classification policy is changed,
the new one is applied retrospectively if possible; in this case the nature and the reason for the change as well as the
items concerned are stated. The formats prescribed by the Bank of Italy for the financial statements of SIMs have been
used in the presentation and classification of items.
Materiality and aggregation – All significant aggregations of items with a similar nature or function are reported
separately. Items having a different nature or function are presented distinctly.
Offsetting – Assets and liabilities, and income and expenses are not offset with each other unless required or permitted
by an IFRS or interpretation or by the formats prescribed by the Bank of Italy for the financial statements of SIMs.
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Comparative information – Comparative information for the previous year is reported for all the figures contained
in the financial statements unless otherwise prescribed or permitted by an IFRS or interpretation. This also relates to
information of a narrative or descriptive nature or comments when useful to an understanding of the figures.
Consistency in the application of accounting standards – The means by which items are recognized are kept
constant over time in order to ensure the comparability of financial statements unless changes are required by an
IFRS or an interpretation or if it makes the representation of the amounts more appropriate in terms of relevance and
reliability. If there is a change in principle, the new principle is adopted retrospectively if possible; in this case the nature
and the reason for the change as well as the items concerned are stated.
Use of estimates and assumptions – In the preparation of the financial statements accounting estimates and
assumptions are used that are based on complex and/or objective judgements, on past experience and on assumptions
that are considered reasonable and realistic on the basis of the information known when the estimates are made. The
use of these estimates affects the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures about contingent assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date, as well as the amounts of income and expense for the reporting period. Actual
results may differ from the estimates owing to the uncertainty that characterizes the assumptions and the conditions
on which the estimates are based.
The main cases for which management is mostly required to make subjective assessments are as follows:
•• the use of valuation models for measuring the fair value of financial instruments not listed on active markets;
•• the quantification of personnel provisions and other provisions;
•• estimates and assumptions regarding the recoverability of deferred tax assets;
•• the quantification of impairment losses on loans and receivables and in general on other financial assets.

Section 3 – Subsequent events
No corporate events of importance occurred during the first few months of 2018 nor anomalous or unusual events
or in any case events that may require to be taken into consideration in the preparation of these financial statements.
In accordance with the requirements of IAS 10 it is hereby stated that the Board of Directors authorized the publication
of these financial statements on March 14th, 2018.

Section 4 – Other aspects
New international accounting standards and amendments to accounting standards already effective were taken into
consideration in the preparation of these financial statements.
With specific regard to paragraph 125 of IAS 1 reference should be made to the section “Risks connected with the
business”.

Section 5 – Consolidation scope and methods

2. Consolidation scope and methods
These consolidated financial statements contain the results and assets and liabilities of the parent company EQUITA
Group S.p.A. (formerly “Turati 9 S.p.A.”), its wholly owned subsidiary EQUITA SIM S.p.A. and its investment in the
joint venture Equita PEP Holding S.r.l..
In accordance with the combined requirements of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, the Group has consolidated its subsidiary using the
line-by-line method and the investment in the entity subject to joint control using the proportionate method.
As discussed in the Report on Operations on July 1st, 2017 Manco S.p.A., which at December 31st, 2016 represented
the minority interests, was merged into the parent company.
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The consolidation scope has been determined on the basis of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements which states
that “control” exists if the following three factors are simultaneously present:
a) the power resulting from existing rights that may be exercised for managing relevant activities, meaning the
activities that significantly affect the investee’s returns, when decisions on such must be taken;
b) the exposure to variable returns from the investee’s activity which may be only positive, only negative or wholly
positive and negative;
c) the ability of the investor to use its power on the investee to affect the amounts of the investor’s returns.
In accordance with paragraph B86 of IFRS 10, the line-by-line consolidation procedure consists of the following:
(a) the combination of like assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary;
(b) the offsetting (elimination) of the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary (see the paragraph below for a description of the way in which the respective
goodwill is accounted for on the basis of IFRS 3 Business Combinations);
(c) the full elimination of intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows from transactions
between the two entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognized
as assets are eliminated in full).
On the basis of IFRS 3, the parent has measured the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their
respective fair values at the date of acquisition of the investment of 50.5% in Equita S.p.A. (first stage), completed on
January 25th 2016 on obtaining authorization from the Bank of Italy.
The aim of this process was to identify any goodwill, which is recognized under line item 120 “Intangible assets” in
the balance sheet and obtained as the excess of (a) over (b) as defined below:
a) the aggregate of:
i) the consideration transferred;
ii) any non-controlling interest in the acquiree;
iii) the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;
b) the net amount at the acquisition date of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed measured in
accordance with IFRS 3 (which generally requires recognition at fair value).
Again in accordance with IFRS 3 the acquisition method was applied to the identifiable assets acquired (including any
material intangible assets not recognized by the subsidiary, such as for example its brand and investment banking
contracts) and the identifiable liabilities assumed, including contingent liabilities.
The initial estimate of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities for IFRS 3 purposes also took into consideration
the results of the final purchase price allocation report issued by the independent expert on March 24th, 2017.

A.2 Part relating to financial statement items
Set out below are the accounting principles and policies adopting in preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31st, 2017. More specifically, information is provided on the policies used in the recognition,
classification, measurement and derecognition of assets and liabilities and the recognition of income and expense.
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Financial assets held for trading
Recognition
Financial assets held for trading are recognized at the settlement date for debt and equity securities and at the
signing date for derivative contracts. Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at cost, meaning the fair
value of the instrument without considering any directly attributable transaction income or expense, which is directly
recognized in profit or loss.

Classification
Financial assets held for trading consist of financial instruments held with the intention of earning short term profits
deriving from changes in the market prices of those instruments.

Measurement
Financial assets held for trading continue to be measured at fair value after initial recognition. Quoted market prices
are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments. In the absence of an active market methods of estimation
and valuation models are used that take into consideration all the risk factors connected with the instruments
and are based on data obtainable from the market, such as: valuation methods for quoted instruments that have
similar features, discounted cash flow calculations, methods for determining option prices, amounts used in recent
comparable transactions.
Equity securities and the related derivative instruments for which fair value cannot be measured reliably under the
above guidelines are kept at cost.

Derecognition
Financial assets classified in the trading portfolio are derecognized on the transfer of all the risks and rewards connected
with these assets (usually at the settlement date). If a part of the risks and rewards relating to the transferred asset are
maintained, the asset continues to be recognized in the financial statements even if from a legal standpoint ownership
of the assets has been effectively transferred.
Securities received as part of a transaction that contractually envisages the subsequent sale and securities delivered as
part of a transaction that contractually envisages the subsequent repurchase have no effect on the owned portfolio.

Recognition of income and expense
Profits and losses (realised and unrealised) arising from the changes in fair value of the trading portfolio are classified
under the line item “Net trading income”.

Held-for-sale financial assets
Recognition
Held-for-sale financial assets are initially recognized at settlement date for debt and equity securities.
They are measured on initial recognition at fair value including directly attributable transaction income and expense.
If in the cases permitted by accounting standards the assets are recognized following reclassification from financial
assets held to maturity or from financial assets held for trading in the presence of unusual events, the assets are
recognized at fair value on transfer.
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Classification
This category includes financial assets not otherwise classified as Loans and receivables, Assets held for trading, Heldto-maturity assets or Financial assets at fair value. In particular, in addition to bonds which are not held for trading
and which are classified as Held-to-maturity assets or measured at fair value or else classified as Loans and receivables,
this line item also includes equity interests not held for trading and not qualifying as subsidiaries, associates or jointlycontrolled entities, including private equity investments and investments in private equity funds. In the cases permitted
by international accounting standards reclassifications are only allowed to Held-to-maturity assets. In addition debt
securities may be reclassified to Held-to-maturity assets or to Loans and receivables if there is the intention to hold
them for the foreseeable future and if the conditions for recognition hold. The transfer amount is fair value on
reclassification.

Measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition Assets held for sale are measured at fair value with the recognition in profit or loss
of the amount corresponding to amortized cost, while any profits or losses resulting from changes in fair value are
recognized in a specific equity reserve if the financial asset is derecognized or if an impairment loss is recognized.
On disposal, wholly or partly, or on the recognition of an impairment loss, the accumulated profits and losses are
reversed, wholly or in part, to profit or loss. Equity securities included in this category and units of CIUs based on
equity securities, not quoted on an active market, for which it is not possible to determine fair value reliably, are
maintained at cost. Available-for-sale financial assets are assessed to identify the existence of any objective evidence
of impairment. If such evidence exists, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and its fair value. If the reasons for the loss no longer hold following an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss this loss is reversed, with the reversal recognized in profit or loss in the case
of receivables and debt securities or in equity in the case of equity securities. The resulting carrying amount of the
asset must not exceed that which would have been determined by using amortized cost had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.

Derecognition
Financial assets are only derecognized if their disposal has led to the substantial transfer of all the risks and rewards
connected with the assets. Conversely if a material portion of the risks and rewards relating to the transferred financial
assets is maintained, the assets continue to be recognized in the financial statements even if from a legal standpoint
ownership of the assets has been effectively transferred. In the case when it is not possible to ascertain the substantial
transfer of the risks and rewards the financial assets are derecognized if no control is maintained over them.
Conversely if control, even in part, is maintained, the assets continue to be recognized in the balance sheet to the
extent of the residual involvement, measured as the exposure to changes in value of the transferred assets and to
changes in their cash flows. Finally, the transferred financial assets are derecognized if the contractual rights to receive
cash flows are maintained with the simultaneous assumption of an obligation to pay such flows, and only those flows,
to third parties.

Loans and receivables
Recognition, classification and measurement
This item consists of loans and receivables due from customers, banks and financial entities. More specifically, the item
includes all the non-derivative assets not listed on an active market that are not classified as “financial assets held for
trading”, including trade receivables and deposits with banks. In addition this item includes repurchase agreements
(“repos”).
Swaps and repurchase agreements with a forward obligation to repurchase or resell are recognized in the financial
statements as lending transactions. More specifically repurchase agreements are recognized as liabilities for the amount
received on sale while reverse repurchase agreements are recognized as receivables for the amount paid on purchase.
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Measurement
An assessment of loans and receivables is performed at each balance sheet date designed to determine whether there
is any objective evidence which indicates that an asset may be impaired as the result of events occurring after initial
recognition.
Any impairment loss recognized against the original carrying amount of loans is reversed in subsequent years to the
extent that the reasons that led to the recognition of the loss no longer hold, provided that this valuation can be
objectively linked to an event occurring after the recognition of the loss.

Derecognition
Loans and receivables are derecognized when the Company no longer has contractual rights to the cash flows deriving
from these loans and receivables or when the loans and receivables are sold, effectively transferring the risks and
rewards of the assets to the buyer.

Recognition of income and expense
Income and expense are recognized in the appropriate line items of the income statement on the basis of the following:
•• interest income is recognized in the line item “interest and similar income”;
•• impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the line item “Net losses/recoveries from
impairment of: a) other financial transactions”.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at cost which in addition to the purchase price includes any
accessory costs directly attributable to the purchase and incurred for the asset to be capable of operating as intended.

Classification
Property, plant and equipment includes technical equipment, furniture and fittings and equipment of any other kind.
Property, plant and equipment represents tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of goods and
services or for administrative purposes and which are expected to be used during more than one period.

Measurement
Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.
At the end of each reporting period, if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired its carrying amount
is compared with its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use,
understood as the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Any changes are
recognized in profit or loss.
If the reasons that led to the recognition of an impairment loss no longer hold the impairment loss is reversed. The
resulting carrying amount of the asset does not exceed that which would have been determined net of depreciation
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when the asset is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
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Recognition of income and expense
Extraordinary maintenance expenses that lead to an increase in future economic benefits are attributed to the carrying
amount of the asset concerned, whereas ordinary maintenance expenses are recognized in profit or loss.
Depreciation is calculated using criteria based on the passage of time, and together with any impairment losses or
reversals of impairment losses is recognized in the line item “Net losses (recoveries) on impairment of tangible assets”.

Intangible assets
Recognition and classification
IAS 38 defines an intangible asset as an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. The characteriztics
required to satisfy the definition of an intangible asset are that it should be a resource:
•• that is identifiable;
•• that it is controlled by an entity;
•• from which future economic benefits are expected to flow.
In the absence of these characteriztics expenses incurred to acquire or generate the asset are fully recognized as a cost
in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
An intangible asset is recognized as such if it is identifiable and arises from contractual or other legal rights. It is
measured at cost, adjusted for any accessory costs only if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable
to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Measurement and derecognition
At the end of each reporting period, if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired an estimate is made of
its recoverable amount. The amount of any impairment loss, recognized in profit or loss, is equal to the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and its recoverable amount.
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or if future economic benefits are no longer expected.

Recognition of income and expense
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are not amortized and an impairment test is carried out on a regular basis to ensure that no impairment losses
need be recognized with respect to an asset’s carrying amount. Leasehold improvement costs incurred by the Company
are amortized over a period not exceeding the term of the lease agreement.

Tax assets and liabilities
The Company recognizes the effects of current and deferred taxation in compliance with national fiscal legislation
and on an accruals basis, consistent with the means of recognizing the income and expense that have generated such
taxes and applying the tax rates that are currently applicable.
Income taxes are always recognized in profit or loss except for those relating to items directly debited or credited to
equity.
The accrual for income taxes is calculated on the basis of a prudent estimate of the current tax charge and deferred tax
income and expense. More specifically, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined on the basis of the temporary
differences – with no time limits – between the carrying amount of an asset or liability calculated in accordance with
civil law criteria and the corresponding tax bases.
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In the balance sheet current tax receivables and payables are recognized under “Current tax assets” and “Current
tax liabilities” in the case in which the offsetting between receivables and payables leads to a net receivable or a net
payable respectively.
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered, with recovery assessed
on the basis of the Company’s ability to generate taxable income on a continuous basis.
Deferred tax liabilities are always recognized with the sole exception of increases in the value of assets which are in
tax suspension and represented by untaxed reserves, as the amount of the available reserves already taxed allows the
reasonable conclusion to be drawn that no transactions will be carried out on the Company’s initiative that would
lead to the taxation of these reserves.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized gross and are not offset, with the former being classified as “Tax
assets” and the latter as “Tax liabilities”.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are systematically assessed to take account of any changes that may have occurred
in legislation or in tax rates and of any of the Company’s various subjective situations.
The tax liability is adjusted as necessary to account for any costs that may arise from assessments received from the
tax authorities or disputes in course with these authorities.

Employee termination indemnities (for companies with more than
50 employees)
The employee termination indemnities (TFR) reflect the liability to all employees for the indemnity payable to them on the
termination of their employment contract. On the basis of Law no. 269 of December 27th 2006 (the 2007 Finance Law),
in accordance with the decision taken by the employee, companies with at least 50 employees must make a mandatory
monthly payment for the portion of the TFR which accrues on or after January 1st, 2007 to the supplementary pension
funds listed in Legislative Decree no. 252/05 or to a specially established fund for payments to be made to employees of
the private sector of the indemnity pursuant to article 2120 of the Italian Civil code (hereinafter Treasury Fund) set up at
the national social security agency INPS. In the light of this there are the following situations:
•• the TFR accruing from January 1st, 2007 for employees opting for the Treasury Fund and from the date of the
decision taken (in compliance with the provisions of applicable law) for employees opting for the supplementary
pension fund, has the nature of a defined contribution plan which does not require an actuarial calculation to
be performed; the same is also true for the TFR of employees hired after December 31st, 2006 regardless of the
decision taken concerning the destination of their TFR;
•• the TFR accrued at the dates stated in the previous paragraph, however, remains a defined benefit plan even if
the service has been fully provided. As a result of this an actuarial calculation is needed to determine the carrying
amount of the liability of the TFR at December 31st, 2006, to take the following into consideration:
– alignment of possible wage and salary increases to those prescribed by article 2120 of the Italian Civil code;
– elimination of the pro-rata method for the services rendered as the services to be valued may be considered to
be wholly completed.
The differences arising from this restatement were accounted for in 2007 as a curtailment in accordance with
paragraphs 109-115 of IAS 19 which requires them to be recognized directly in profit or loss.

Allowances for risks and charges
In accordance with IAS 37 this item contains recognized liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the following
conditions occur: a) the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event; b) it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and c) a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
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Allowances are no longer recognized in the case of utilization or if the conditions for keeping them in the balance
sheet no longer hold.
Accruals to allowances and any reversals of accruals are recognized in the line item “Net charges for allowances”.

Payables
This item consists of payables to banks, financial entities and customers; it also includes repurchase agreements with
a forward obligation or option to resell.
Items are initially recognized at the fair value of the liability which is usually the contractual value.
Payables are derecognized when the related contractual rights have expired or been extinguished.

Financial trading liabilities
The same criteria are used as those for financial assets. This item consists of liabilities measured at fair value that
originate from overdrafts generated by trading securities; sold derivatives contracts are also included in this category.

Transactions in foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currency are initially recognized in the money of account by applying the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction to the amount in currency.
At each balance sheet date items in foreign currency are measured as follows: (i) monetary items are translated at the
closing rate; (ii) non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction; (iii) non-monetary items that are measured at fair value are translated at the closing rate.
Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were translated on initial recognition or in previous financial statements are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized directly in equity any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognized directly in equity. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or
loss any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Treasury shares
Treasury shares are deducted from equity. Any gains or losses on the sale of treasury shares are also recognized in
equity.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized when received or when the future benefits can be measured reliably.
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OTHER INFORMATION
Leasehold improvements
The costs incurred for the restructuring of properties not owed by the Company are capitalized due to the fact that
during the term of the lease agreement the lessee company has control of the assets and can obtain future economic
benefits from them. These costs are classified as “Other assets” as prescribed by the Bank of Italy’s instructions and
are amortized over a period not exceeding the lease term.

Related parties
On the basis of IAS 24, related parties are:
a) parties that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Company and the relative associates and parents;
b) associates, joint ventures and the companies controlled by such;
c) key management personnel, meaning those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the parent company, directly or indirectly, including directors and members of the
Statutory Board of Auditors;
d) entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by any person referred to in c);
e) close members of the family of any person referred to in c), meaning family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Company (these may include that person’s
spouse or domestic partner, children, children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner and dependants of that
person’s spouse or domestic partner) as well as the entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by any of those persons;
f) post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of the parent company’s employees or any other entity related to
such.
g) In addition, transactions with corporate vehicles which may not necessarily be directly linked to related parties but
whose benefits are attributable to related parties are also considered to be related party transactions.

A.3 Disclosure on reclassifications of financial assets between
categories
In accordance with the requirements of paragraph 12A of IFRS 7 it is hereby stated that there have been no
reclassifications of financial assets from one category to another during the year.

A.4 Fair value disclosures
The disclosures required by paragraphs 91 and 92 of IFRS 13 are provided in the following.
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Disclosures of a qualitative nature
A.4.1 Fair value levels 2 and 3: valuation techniques and inputs used
Market quotations are used for the determination of the fair value of listed financial instruments. In the absence of
an active market, estimation methods and valuation models are used; these take into consideration all the risk factors
related to the instruments and are based on information obtainable from the market, such as: valuation methods of
listed instruments that have the same characteriztics, discounted cash flow calculations, option-pricing models and
prices in recent comparable transactions. Equity securities and the related derivative instruments for which it is not
possible to determine fair value in a reliable manner in accordance with the above guidelines are measured at cost.

A.4.2 Valuation processes and sensitivity
Estimation method and valuation models used when there is no active market assume relevance in the case of a
significant level of assets or liabilities. If the assets or liabilities subject to estimation have only marginal relevance they
are measured at cost.

A.4.3 Fair value hierarchy
In accordance with paragraph 95 of IFRS 13 the valuation techniques used to determine the fair value of financial
assets and liabilities are categorized into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities that the Company can access at the valuation date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other
than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs
are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

A.4.4 Other information
As there are no financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value having the nature of those described in paragraphs
51, 93(i) and 96 of IFRS 13, meaning assets/liabilities for which there is a difference between fair value at initial
recognition (transaction price) and the amount determined at that date by using level 2 or 3 valuation techniques for
fair value, no disclosures of a quantitative nature are provided.
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Disclosures of a quantitative nature
A.4.5 Fair value hierarchy
A.4.5.1 A
 ssets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis: analysis by fair value level
Assets/liabilities measured at fair value (E)

Level 1

Level 2

Level3

Total

44,399,648

2,858,546

63,911

47,322,106

2. Financial assets at fair value

–

–

–

–

3. Available-for-sale financial assets

–

–

2,154,394

2,154,394

4. Hedging derivatives

–

–

–

–

5. Tangible assets

–

–

–

–

6. Intangible assets

–

–

–

–

Total

44,399,548

2,858,546

2,218,305

49,476,500

1. Financial liabilities held for trading

14,625,536

–

2. Financial liabilities at fair value

–

–

–

–

3. Hedging derivatives

–

–

–

–

14,625,536

–

1. Financial assets held for trading

Total

14,625,536

14,625,536

During the year there were no transfers of assets or liabilities between Level 1 and Level 2 as per IFRS 13, paragraph
93c).
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A.4.5.4 A
 ssets and liabilities not measured at fair value or measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basis: analysis by fair value level
Assets/liabilities not
measured at fair value or
measured at fair value on a
non-recurring basis (E)
1.

Held-to-maturity financial
assets

2.

Loans and receivables

3.

Tangible assets held for investment purposes

4.

Non-current assets held for
sale

2017
Carrying
Amount

L1

159,959,894

2016

L2

L3

Carrying
Amount

159,959,894 151,809,708

L1

L2

L3

151,809,708

Total

159,959,894

159,959,894

151,809,708

151,809,708

1.

Payables

129,136,377

129,136,377

125,032,545

125,032,545

2.

Outstanding securities

3.

Liabilities associated with
assets held for sale
129,136,377

129,136,377

125,032,545

125,032,545

Total
Key:

CA = Carrying amount L1 = Level 1 L2 = Level 2 L3 = Level 3

A.5 Disclosure on “day one profit/loss”
Day one profit/loss, governed by paragraph 28 of IFRS 7 and paragraph AG 76 of IAS 39, arises from the difference on
initial recognition between the transaction price of a financial instrument and its fair value. This difference generally
occurs for financial instruments that do not have an active market and is recognized in profit or loss over the useful
life of the instrument.
The Company does not have operations that are liable to generate significant components of income that have the
nature of day one profit/loss.
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Part B – Information on the balance sheet
Assets
Section 1 – Cash and cash equivalents – Line item 10
11

Composition of line item 10 “Cash and cash
equivalents” (E)
Cash and cash equivalents

2017

2016

816

2,740

This item relates to available cash held at the Company.

Section 2 – Financial assets held for trading – Line item 20
2.1 Financial assets held for trading: by type
2017
Amount (E)

2016

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

A.

A. Cash assets

1.

Debt securities

8,784,874

2,084,147

55,651

5,727,189

93,664

– structured securities

4,049,746

245,005

–

711,224

–

– other debt securities

4,735,129

1,839,141

55,651

5,015,965

93,664

33,417,738

771,995

8,260

28,444,636

79,226

263,498

2,405

819,607

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

42,466,111

2,858,547

63,911

34,991,432

–

172,890

2.

equity securities

3.

Units of UCIs

4.

Loans
Total A

B.

Derivative instruments

1.

Financial derivatives

1,933,537

–

–

3,592,974

–

–

– trading

1,933,537

–

–

3,592,974

–

–

– fair value option

–

–

–

–

–

–

– other

–

–

–

–

–

–

Credit derivatives

–

–

–

–

–

–

– trading

–

–

–

–

–

–

– fair value option

–

–

–

–

–

–

– other

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total B

1,933,537

–

–

3,592,974

–

–

44,399,648

2,858,547

63,911

38,584,406

–

172,890

2.

Total A+B
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2.2 Derivative financial instruments
Interest
rate

Currency

Equity
securities

Other

Total
2017

Total
2016

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Fair value

–

–

1,933,537

–

1,933,537

3,592,974

– Notional amount

–

– 53,922,348

– 53,922,348 48,713,900

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total

–

–

1,933,537

–

1,933,537

3,592,974

Total

–

–

1,933,537

–

1,933,537

3,592,974

Type/underlying (E)
1.

Over the counter
Financial derivatives

Credit derivatives

2.

Other
Financial derivatives

Credit derivatives

Equity securities also include positions on stock indices.
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2.3 Financial assets held for trading: by debtor issuer
Item/amount (E)

2017

2016

10,924,672

5,820,853

2,441

5,431

–

–

c) Banks

8,197,080

3,868,413

d) Financial entities

1,910,810

1,269,790

e) Other issuers

814,341

677,219

Equity securities

34,197,994

28,523,862

a) Banks

1,836,749

1,698,571

b) Financial entities

2,521,765

782,402

29,839,480

26,042,888

265,903

819,607

Loans

–

–

a) Banks

–

–

b) Financial entities

–

–

c) Customers

–

–

1,933,537

3,592,974

726,965

1,863,500

1,206,571

1,729,474

47,322,106

38,757,296

Debt securities
a) Governments and central banks
b) Other public entities

c) Other issuers
Units of UCIs

Derivative financial instruments
a) Banks
b) Other counterparties
Total
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Liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading – Line item 30
3.1 Composition of line item 30 “Financial liabilities held for trading”
Liabilities
Amount (E)

2017
fair value
L1

L2

L3

2016
FV*

VN

fair value
L1

L2

L3

FV*

VN

632,157

A.

Cash liabilities

1.

Payables

11,578,043

140,768

10,719,657

–

– 10,719,657

2.

Debt securities

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Bonds

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– structured

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– other bonds

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Other securities

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– structured

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– other

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total A

11,578,043

–

– 11,578,043

140,768

10,719,657

–

– 10,719,657

632,157

–

–

3,047,493 66,465,371

3,340,190

–

–

3,340,190 45,049,749

3,047,493 66,465,371

3,340,190

–

–

3,340,190 45,049,749

11,578,043

B.

Derivative instruments

1.

Financial derivatives

3,047,493

– trading

3,047,493

2.

– fair value option

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– other

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Credit derivatives

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– trading

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– fair value option

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– other

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,047,493

–

–

3,047,493 66,465,371

3,340,190

–

–

14,625,536

–

– 14,625,536 66,606,139

14,059,847

–

– 14,059,847 45,681,906

Total B
Total A+B

3,340,190 45,049,749

FV* = Fair Value calculated excluding changes in value due to changes in the creditworthiness of the issuer compared to the issue
date

Payables include open positions on equity securities. There are no subordinated liabilities.
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3.3 “Financial liabilities held for trading”: derivative financial instruments
Interest
rates

Currency

Equity
securities

Other

Total
2017

Total
2016

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Fair value

–

–

3,047,493

–

3,047,493

3,340,190

– Notional amount

–

– 66,465,371

– 66,465,371 45,049,749

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total

–

–

3,047,493

–

3,047,493

3,340,190

Total

–

–

3,047,493

–

3,047,493

3,340,190

Type/underlying (E)
Over the counter
Financial derivatives

Credit derivatives

Other
Financial derivatives

Credit derivatives
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Section 4 – Available-for-sale financial assets – Line item 40
4.1 Composition of line item 40 “Available-for-sale financial assets”
2017
Amount (E)

Level 1

Level 2

2016
Level 3

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

1. Debt securities
– structured securities
– other debt securities
2. Equity securities
3. Units of UCIs

800,000
1,354,394

413,725

2,154,394

413,725

4. Loans
Total

4.2 Available-for-sale financial assets: composition by debtor/issuer
Amount (E)

2017

2016

Debt securities
a) Governments and central banks
b) Other public entities
c) Banks
d) Financial entities
e) Other issuers
Equity securities

800,000

a) Banks
b) Financial entities

800,000

c) Other issuers
Units of UCIs

1,354,394

413,725

2,154,394

413,725

Loans
a) Banks
b) Financial entities
c) Customers
Total

Impairment testing of available-for-sale financial assets
As required by IFRSs available-for-sale financial assets have been tested for impairment to ascertain whether there is
objective evidence that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. Impairment testing envisages
checking for indicators of impairment and determining any impairment losses. No indicators of impairment were
identified in the testing carried out on the UCI financial instruments and on equity securities represented by the share
capital of EPS S.p.A. included in the AFS category.
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Section 6 – Loans and receivables – Line item 60
6.1 Due from banks

Composition (E)
Carrying
Amount

2017

2016

Fair value

Fair value

L1

L2

L3

Carrying
Amount

L1

L2

L3

1.

Loans

148,756,081

148,756,081

135,329,058

135,329,058

1.1

Deposits and current accounts

116,048,905

116,048,905

103,052,669

103,052,669

1.2

Receivables for services

6,371,393

6,371,393

1,190,152

1,190,152

– of which order execution

4,272,230

4,272,230

– of which management

1,089,031

1,089,031

546,071

546,071

– of which consultancy

1,010,132

1,010,132

555,764

555,764

–

–

88,317

88,317

26,335,783

26,335,783

31,086,237

31,086,237

26,335,783

26,335,783

31,086,237

31,086,237

148,756,081

148,756,081

135,329,058

135,329,058

– of which other services
1.3

Repos
– of which on government
bonds
– of which on other debt
securities
– of which on equity
securities

1.4

Other loans

2.

Debt securities

2.1

Structured securities

2.2

Other debt securities
Total

Key:
L1 = Level 1 L2 = Level 2 L3 = Level 3

Repos (repurchase orders) refer to security lending transactions whose object is mainly the shares of companies listed
on the Italian market.
Deposits and current accounts include E96.4 mn pledged against the loan of E115 mn granted by Intesa Sanpaolo
S.p.A. and recognized in line item “10 – Payables”.
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6.2 Due from financial entities

Composition (E)
Carrying
Amount
1.
1.1
1.2

2016

Fair value

Fair value

L1

L2

L3

Carrying
Amount

L1

L2

L3

Loans

8,303,648

8,303,648

10,147,892

10,147,892

Deposits and current accounts

1,557,326

1,557,326

2,238,455

2,238,455

Receivables for services

6,746,322

6,746,322

7,909,437

7,909,437

of which order execution

5,720,611

5,720,611

7,121,119

7,121,119

–

–

–

–

of which consultancy

885,736

885,736

431,692

431,692

of which other services

139,975

139,975

356,626

356,626

–

–

–

–

of which management

Repos
1.3

2017

of which government bonds

–

–

of which other debt securities

–

–

of which equity securities

–

–

–

–

8,303,648

8,303,648

10,147,892

10,147,892

Other loans
1.4

Debt securities

2.

Structured securities

2.1

Other debt securities

2.2

Total

Amounts due from financial entities refer mainly to outstanding receivables for order execution on behalf of customers
and, to a residual extent, liquidity relating to derivative transactions and receivables for consultancy provided.
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6.3 Due from customers

Composition (E)

2017

2016

Fair value

Fair value

Carrying
L1 L2
amount
1.

Loans

1.1

Deposits and current accounts

1.2

Receivables for services
– of which order execution

L3

2,908,897

6,332,758

6,332,758

2,900,164

2,900,164

6,332,758

6,332,758

384,862

384,862

–

–

–

–

2,515,302

2,515,302

6,274,559

6,274,559

58,200

58,200

6,332,758

6,332,758

– of which other services
1.3

Carrying
L1 L2
amount

2,900,164

– of which management
– of which consultancy

L3

Repos
– of which government bonds
– of which other debt securities
– of which equity securities

1.4

Other loans

2.

Debt securities

2.1

Structured securities

2.2

Other debt securities
Total

2,900,164

2,900,164

Receivables for services are stated net of impairment losses. In previous years the receivables due from the Burani
group were completely written down. With the bankruptcy procedure under way, in both cases EQUITA has been
admitted as an unsecured creditor; the subsidiary EQUITA SIM was summonsed to court as a third party to appear
in two separate cases, now combined. The subsidiary appeared before the court disputing the summons in fact
and in law. In 2016 one of the two insolvency procedures was completed with the payment of a total amount of
E265K. This settlement was recognized as other operating income. The second insolvency case is still pending.
In previous years receivables for services were written down for an uncollectible amount of E358,272 in addition to
the above-mentioned Burani positions. Receivables were written down in 2017 by an amount of E130K while the
write-down of a receivable by E122K in 2015 has been partially reversed following an agreement reached with the
counterparty which led to the payment of E35K at December 31st, 2016 and a further E30K in 2017.
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Section 9 – Equity investments – Line item 90
9.1 Equity investments: information on participation relationships
Jointly-controlled companies consist of Equita PEP Holding S.r.l. whose registered office is in Via Turati 9, Milan.
The Company has a holding of 50% with the other 50% held by Private Equity Partners S.p.A..
The investment is accounted for using the equity method and had a carrying amount of E1,330,919 at December
31st, 2017, while its nominal value is E1,350,000.
A description of the criteria and methods of determining the consolidation scope and of the reasons for which an
investee is subject to joint control or significant influence is provided in “Part A Accounting principles and policies”
to which reference should be made.

9.2 Changes in equity investments during the year
The investment in Equita PEP Holding S.r.l. was acquired in 2017.

Section 10 – Property, plant and equipment – Line item 100
10.1 Business assets: composition of assets measured at cost
Asset/amount (E)
1.

2017

2016

602,655

591,526

a) land

–

–

b) buildings

–

–

Owned assets

c) furniture

336,460

285,691

d) electronic equipment

257,380

303,811

8,815

2,024

602,655

591,526

e) other
2.

Assets acquired under finance leases
a) land
b) buildings
c) furniture
d) electronic equipment
e) other
Total

The Company has no finance lease arrangements.
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10.5 Property, plant and equipment: changes during the year
Amount (E)
A.

Opening balances, gross

A.1

Reductions in total value, net

A.2

Opening balances, net

B.

Land

Buildings

Furniture

Electronic
equipment

423,697

1,478,657

1,902,353

(138,006)

(1,172,822)

(1,310,828)

285,691

305,835

591,526

96,692

58,616

155,308

(45,923)

(98,256)

(144,178)

336,460

266,195

602,655

(183,928)

(1,271,077)

(1,455,006)

Other

Total

Increases

B.1

Purchases

B.2

Capitalized leasehold improvements

B.3

Reinstatements of value

B.4

Positive changes in fair value recognized
in:
a) equity
b) profit or loss

B.5

Exchange gains

B.6

Transfers from investment properties

B.7

Other changes

C.

Decreases

C.1

Sales

C.2

Depreciation

C.3

Impairment losses recognized in:
a) equity
b) profit or loss

C.4

Negative changes in fair value
recognized in:
a) equity
b) profit or loss

C.5

Exchange losses

C.6

Transfers to:
a) tangible assets held for investment
b) assets held for sale

C.7
D.
D.1

Reductions in total value, net

D.2

Closing balances, gross

520,388

1,537,273

2,057,661

Measurement at cost

520,388

1,537,273

2,057,661

E.
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Other changes
Closing balances, net
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10.7 Commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment (IAS 16/74 c)
In accordance with paragraph 74 c) of IAS 16, the Company has no commitments by way of contracts or orders for
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Section 11 – Intangible assets – Line item 110
11.1 Composition of line item 110 “Intangible assets”
2017
Amount (E)

Measured at
cost

1.

Goodwill

2.

Other intangible assets

2.1

internally generated

2.2

other

481,786

Total

481,786

481,786

2016

Measured at
fair value

Measured at
Measured
cost at fair value

11,014,258

11,014,060

2,158,442

37,315

2,158,442

2,403,275
2,403,275

37,315
13,172,700

37,315

13,417,335

Starting from the 2016 consolidated financial statements, as the result of using a line-by-line consolidation method
and following the adoption of the purchase price allocation, goodwill of approximately E11 mn has been recognized
together with the brand name and contracts of E2.4 million. Goodwill continues to be carried at E11 mn in the
consolidated financial statements of EQUITA Group S.p.A. at December 31st, 2017, while the brand name and
contracts are carried at E2.2 mn after the amortization charge for the period of E0.2 mn for the investment banking
contracts. The other intangible assets consist of capitalized software expenditure.

The brand name
Following the purchase price allocation other intangible assets have been recognized in the consolidated financial
statements from 2016, being the brand name EQUITA for E2.1 mn and investment banking contracts for E0.3 million.
The brand name forms part of the marketing-related intangible assets identified by IFRS 3 as potential intangible
assets that may be recognized as part of a purchase price allocation.
In this respect the term brand name is not used in the accounting standards in a restrictive sense to mean the synonym
of trademark (the logo and the name), but rather as a general marketing term that defines the set of complementary
intangible assets (including, in addition to the name and the logo, capabilities, consumer confidence, service quality,
etc.) that combine to establish “brand equity”.
The method of implicit multiples was used for the initial measurement of the brand name.
Being an intangible asset that does not have independent cash flows and a right legally protected by registration, but
not having a competitive, legal or economic term that limits its useful life, in order to carry out impairment testing the
brand name was considered as part of the assets used in testing the carrying amount of the goodwill of the CGU. As
explained in the following, the results of the impairment testing did not lead to the need to write down the intangible.
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Impairment testing of intangible assets
Under IAS 36 intangible assets with finite useful lives, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and goodwill must
be impairment tested annually. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Given the volatility of the financial markets and the values that may be
obtained from them reference was made to value in use, calculated using a discounted cash flow method, to calculate
the recoverable amount
For the 2017 impairment testing a time-frame of 5 years, 2018-2022, was used as the period for analytical forecasting.
The cost of capital was calculated using the “Capital Asset Pricing Model” (CAPM). Under this model the cost of
capital was determined as the sum of returns on risk-free investments and a risk premium, in turn dependent on the
specific risk of the asset.
Usually the discount rate must include the cost of the various sources used to finance the asset being assessed, namely
the cost of equity and the cost of debt (being the weighted average cost of capital or WACC). This was, however,
estimated from an “equity side” standpoint, meaning considering only the cost of equity (Ke), consistent with the
model for determining the flows that include those deriving from financial assets and liabilities.
Going into detail for the various components that contribute to the determination of the discount rate the following
points are noted:
•• for the risk-free rate included in the discount rate, it was considered appropriate to use the average annual return
(2017) on Italian 10-year government bonds (BTPs), in this way incorporating the country risk premium for Italy;
•• for the equity risk premium, meaning business risk, represented by the difference between the return from the
equity market and the return from an investment in risk-free securities, the equity risk premium of the US market
in the period 1960-2017 was used;
•• the beta coefficient, which measures the specific risk of the individual business or operating sector, was calculating
by taking a sample of international companies operating in the investment banking sector (determined on the
basis of weekly observations over two years);
•• the alpha coefficient, which is an expression of the specific risk premium for EQUITA SIM, was assumed to be 3%
given the Company’s size and the inherent volatility of its income.
A discount rate of 11.47% in the base scenario was obtained from the above assumptions. For terminal value an
expected growth rate after the explicit forecast period of 1% was taken, in line with the expected long-term inflation
rate.
The result of the impairment testing showed that at December 31st, 2017 the value in use of the EQUITA SIM CGU
exceeded its carrying amount. It was therefore not necessary to recognize any impairment losses for intangible assets
with indefinite lives.

Sensitivity analysis
Since value in use was calculated using estimates and assumptions that may contain elements of uncertainty, in
accordance with IAS/IFRS sensitivity analyses were performed that were designed to establish the sensitivity of the
results obtained to changes in the main parameters and assumptions used in performing the testing.
More specifically, the effect on value in use of a 50 bps increase in the discount rate and a 50 bps decrease in the
growth rate used in arriving at the terminal value was calculated. In addition, variation analyses were conducted on
value in use considering a deterioration of 10% in the discounted cash flows, and as a result in the flows used to
determine the terminal value.
Even using the above pejorative parameters the value in use of the EQUITA SIM CGU exceeded its carrying amount.
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11.2 Intangible assets: changes during the year
Total (E)
A.

Opening balance

B.

Increases

B.1

Purchases

B.2

Reinstatements of value

–

B.3

Positive changes in fair value recognized in:

–

– equity

–

– profit or loss

–

B.4

Other changes

–

C.

Decreases

C.1

Sales

C.2

Amortization

C.3

Impairment losses recognized in:

–

– equity

–

– profit or loss

–

Negative changes in fair value recognized in:

–

– equity

–

– profit or loss

–

C.5

Other changes

–

D.

Closing balance

C.4

13,454,650
–
514,169

–
(314,333)

13,654,486
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Section 12 – Tax assets and liabilities – Line item 120
12.1 Composition of line item 120 “Current and deferred tax assets”
Amount (E)

2017

2016

4,275,338

3,117,242

823,068

7,624,896

A.

Current

1.

Payments on account

2.

Tax provision

(413,736)

(5,390,000)

3.

Tax credits and withholding taxes

3,865,929

882,346

B.

Deferred

2,039,957

2,876,818

Total

6,315,295

5,994,060

The sub-items “Tax provision” and “Payments on account” refer to IRAP regional production tax for the year.
The sub-item “Tax credits and withholding taxes” refers to the following: a receivable for IRAP recognized following
the conversion of the ACE excess of the previous year; an IRAP receivable due to the fact that the Company has
no employees; a receivable for IRES corporate income tax following the adoption of the national tax consolidation
scheme; and an advance for current taxes recognized following the franking of the values of trademarks and goodwill.
“Deferred tax assets” refer to the tax calculated on the temporary differences arising following the deferral of the
deductibility of expenses for tax purposes with respect to the year they are recognized for accounting purposes.
The Company has no deferred tax assets relating to Law no. 214/2011.

12.2 Composition of line item 70 “Tax liabilities: current and deferred”
Amount (E)

2017

2016

503,407

1,036,469

A.

Current

1.

Tax provision

2.

Tax credits and withholding taxes

3.

Payments on account

4.

Other taxes

503,407

877,738

B.

Deferred

739,607

861,913

1,243,014

1,898,382

Total

158,731

The item “Tax provision” relates to current IRAP, while “Other taxes” consist of the tax on financial transactions, paid
over to the authorities, due on trading financial instruments on the Group’s own behalf.
Deferred tax liabilities refer to the actuarial component of the employee termination indemnities and taxes on the
values of brand names and contracts, partially amortized, arising as part of the 2016 purchase price allocation.
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12.3 C
 hanges in deferred tax assets
(with counter-entry to profit or loss)
Amount (E)
1.

Opening balance

2.

Increases

2.1

Deferred tax assets recognized in the year:

2017

2016

2,876,818

1,934,003

969,718

1,020,089

a) relating to prior years
b) due to a change in accounting policy
c) reinstatements
d) other
2.2

New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3

Other increases

3.

Decreases

3.1

Deferred tax assets derecognized during the year:
a) reversals

1,020,089
969,718

1,812,312

(77,274)

(1,503,521)

(77,274)

b) write-downs for non-recoverability
c) due to a change in accounting policy
d) other
3.2

Reductions in tax rates

3.3

Other decreases

(308,791)

a) conversion to tax credits pursuant to Law no. 214/2011
b) other
4.

Closing balance

2,034,224

2,876,818
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12.4 Changes in deferred tax assets
(with counter-entry to equity)
Amount (E)
1.

Opening balance

2.

Increases

2.1

Deferred tax assets recognized in the year:

2017

2016

0

0

5,733

a) relating to prior years
b) due to a change in accounting policy
c) reinstatements
d) other
2.2

New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3

Other increases

3.

Decreases

3.1

Deferred tax assets derecognized during the year:

5,733

a) reversals
b) write-downs for non-recoverability
c) due to a change in accounting policy
d) other
3.2

Reductions in tax rates

3.3

Other decreases
a) conversion to tax credits pursuant to Law no. 214/2011
b) other

4.

104

Closing balance
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5,733

0

12.6 C
 hanges in deferred tax liabilities
(with counter-entry to equity)
Amount (E)

2017

2016
94,224

1.

Opening balance

67,150

2.

Increases

47,983

2.1

Deferred tax liabilities recognized in the year:
a) relating to prior years
b) due to a change in accounting policy
c) reinstatements
d) other

47,983

2.2

New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3

Other increases

3.

Decreases

13,777

(27,074)

3.1

Deferred tax liabilities derecognized during the year:

(5,993)

(27,074)

c) other

(5,993)

(27,074)

3.2

Reduction in tax rates

(7,784)

3.3

Other decreases

4.

Closing balance

a) relating to prior years
b) due to a change in accounting policy

101,356

67,150

2017

2016

14,060,365

6,212,573

Other assets:

878,749

940,000

– prepaid instalments

172,903

137,368

Section 14 – Other assets – Line item 140
14.1 Composition of line item 140 “Other assets”
Amount (E)
Deposits with clearing houses and guarantee bodies

– guarantee deposits
– revaluations of off balance sheet items
– advances to suppliers
– leasehold improvements
Total other assets

1,000
5,291

1,727

14,060

–

686,495

799,905

14,939,114

7,152,573

“Deposits with clearing houses” refer to amounts deposited with the Clearing and Guarantee Fund (Cassa di
Compensazione e Garanzia) against operations carried out on the IDEM market and payments into the “Default
Fund”.
“Other assets” consist of:
•• - leasehold improvements carried out during the year to pre-existing premises and new premises leased since June
2016;
•• prepayments for amounts paid during the current year relating, wholly or in part, to costs to be incurred in
subsequent periods.
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Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Section 1 – Payables – Line item 10
2017

Amount (E)
1.
1.1

Loans

Due to
banks

Due to
financial
entities

2016
Due to
customers

115,000,000

Due to
banks

Due to
financial
entities

Due to
customers

120,000,000

Repos
of which on government bonds
of which on other debt securities
of which on equity securities

1.2

Loans

2.

Other payables

115,000,000

120,000,000

2,591,275

11,545,102

–

1,436,562

3,595,984

117,591,275

11,545,102

–

121,436,562

3,595,984

–

Fair value - level 3

117,591,275

11,545,102

–

–

121,436,562

3,595,984

Total fair value

117,591,275

11,545,102

121,436,562

3,595,984

Total
Fair value - level 1
Fair value - level 2

Reference should be made to line item “60 – Loans and Receivables” for details relating to the sub-item “Loans”.
In the fourth quarter of 2017 EQUITA Group made early repayment of the loan taken out in 2016 to acquire the first
tranche of EQUITA SIM S.p.A..
No amounts are due to financial promoters and there are no subordinated liabilities.
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14,625,536

–

–
3,047,493

– other

Total B

Total A+B

–

–

– fair value option

–

–

–

–

–
–

– trading

–
–

Credit derivatives

– other

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

L2

Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

11,578,043

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,047,493 66,465,371

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,047,493 66,465,371

3,047,493 66,465,371

140,768

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

140,768

NV

– 14,625,536 66,606,139

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– 11,578,043

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

L3

FV*

Payables include open positions on equity securities. There are no subordinated liabilities.

L1

–

14,059,847

3,340,190

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,340,190

3,340,190

10,719,657

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

L2

Fair value

10,719,657

FV* = Fair Value calculated excluding changes in value due to changes in the creditworthiness of the issuer compared to the issue date.

2.

– trading
–

3,047,493

Financial derivatives

– fair value option

3,047,493

Derivative instruments

11,578,043

Total A

1.

–

– other

B.

–
–

–

– other bonds

– Other securities

–

– structured

– structured

–
–

2.

11,578,043

Debt securities

Payables

1.

L1

– Bonds

Cash liabilities

A.

Liability (E)

2017

3.1 Composition of line item 30 “Financial liabilities held for trading”

Section 3 – Financial liabilities held for trading – Line item 30

FV*

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,340,190 45,049,749

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,340,190 45,049,749

3,340,190 45,049,749

632,157

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

632,157

NV

– 14,059,847 45,681,906

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– 10,719,657

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– 10,719,657

L3

2016

3.3 “Financial liabilities held for trading”: derivative financial instruments
Interest
rates

Currency

Equity
securities

Other

Total
2017

Total
2016

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Fair value

–

–

3,047,493

–

3,047,493

3,340,190

– Notional amount

–

– 66,465,371

– 66,465,371 45,049,749

– Fair value

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Notional amount

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total

–

–

3,047,493

–

3,047,493

3,340,190

Total

–

–

3,047,493

–

3,047,493

3,340,190

Type/underlying (E)
Over the counter
Financial derivatives

Credit derivatives

Other
Financial derivatives

Credit derivatives
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Section 9 – Other liabilities – Line item 90
9.1 Composition of line item 90 “Other liabilities”
Amount (E)
1.

2017

2016

12,832,051

12,141,478

– due to state agencies for social security and accident insurance
contributions

304,516

287,827

– due to tax authorities for IRPEF personal income tax

588,200

692,492

– invoices issued relating to future periods

370,449

304,253

(115,715)

30,391

13,979,502

13,456,441

Other liabilities:
– due to suppliers and other payables

– due to the tax authorities for various taxes
Total

The item “due to suppliers and other payables” mainly consists of amounts due to employees and the related social
charges, and accruals for invoices to be received or liabilities for invoices already received but not yet settled at the
balance sheet date.
The item “due to state agencies for social security and accidence insurance contributions” refers to amounts due to
the agencies INPS and INAIL on fixed and variable remuneration paid/to be paid to collaborators.
The item “due to the tax authorities for various taxes” includes the VAT charged on services rendered.

Section 10 – Employee termination indemnities – Line item 100
10.1 “Employee termination indemnities”: changes during the year
Amount (E)
A.

Opening balance

B.

Increases

B1.

Charge for the year
Other increases

2017

2016

4,160,648

4,453,829

(7,609)

152,561

C.

Decreases

C1.

Payments made

2,024,835

419,684

C2.

Other decreases

157,520

26,058

D.

Closing balance

1,970,684

4,160,648

The other increases and other decreases relate respectively to the interest cost and actuarial gains arising from the
valuation of the TFR in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19.
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10.2 Other information
The employee termination indemnities was calculated with the assistance of an independent actuary who used the
following assumptions:
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

0.88%

0.86%

– annual revaluation of the TFR

2.625% for 2017
2.850% for 2018
2.775% for 2019
2.700% for 2020
3.0% from 2021

2.625% for 2016
2.850% for 2017
2.775% for 2018
2.700% for 2019
3.0% from 2020

– inflation rate

1.50% for 2017
1.80% for 2018
1.70% for 2019
1.60% for 2020
2.0% from 2021

1.50% for 2016
1.80% for 2017
1.70% for 2018
1.60% for 2019
2.0% from 2020

– rate of advances

2.50%

2.50%

– turnover rate

4.00%

4.00%

– discount rate

The discount rate used to calculate the present value of the obligation was calculated in line with paragraph 83 of
IAS 19, with reference being made at the valuation date to the Iboxx Corporate AA index with a term of 7-10 years.
The annual revaluation of the TFR is prescribed by article 2120 of the Italian Civil code as being 75% of the
inflation rate plus 1.5 percentage points.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis was performed on the net defined benefit obligation (DBO) as per the previous table. The
following figures represent the net defined benefit obligation for the stated changes in the actuarial assumptions.
Sensitivity analysis of the main valuation parameters for the DBO at 31.12.2017 (E)
Turnover rate +1%

1,958,153

Turnover rate -1%

1,984,390

Inflation rate +0.25%

1,996,906

Inflation rate -0.25%

1,944,894

Discount rate +0.25%

1,929,197

Discount rate -0.25%

2,013,524

The average term of the defined benefit obligation is 8.9 years for the TFR.
Estimated future disbursements (E)

110

Years

Expected disbursements

1

127,068

2

121,242

3

115,674

4

110,384

5

105,252
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Section 11 – Allowances for risks and charges – Line item 110
11.1 Composition of line item 110 “Allowances for risks and charges”
Amount (E)

2017

2016

1.

Other allowances

1.1

Personnel allowances

6,344,994

8,130,629

Total

6,344,994

8,130,629

The line item “Personnel allowances” consists exclusively of accruals for non-recurring forms of remuneration for
services already rendered during the year but for which payment will be effected in the future.

11.2 Changes during the year in the line item 110 “Allowances for risks and
charges”
Other
allowances

Amount (E)
A.

Opening balance

B.

Increases

B.1

Accruals for the year

B.2

Other changes

C.

Increases

C.1

Utilization during the year

C.2

Other changes

D.

Closing balance

8,130,629
3,266,710

(5,052,345)
6,344,994

Section 12 – Shareholders’ equity– Line items 120, 130, 140, 150, 160
and 170
12.1 Composition of line item 120 “Share capital”
Type

Amount (E)

1.

Share capital

1.1

Ordinary shares

11,376,345

Share capital consists of 50 mn ordinary shares without nominal value.

12.2 Composition of line item 130 “Treasury shares”
Type
2.

Amount (E)
Share capital

(4,748,025)

During the year the Company acquired treasury shares of €4,329,000 by way of the merger with Manco S.p.A. and
of €3,860,025 from selling shareholders, and sold treasury shares of €3,441,000 as part of the IPO.
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12.4 Composition of line item 150 “Share premium reserve”
Type
4.

Amount (E)
Share premium reserve

18,198,319

The share premium reserve arose as part of the IPO.

Analysis of the composition of shareholders’ equity with reference to availability
and possibilities for use pursuant to article 2427, paragraph 1, 7-bis of the Italian
Civil code
Amount (E)
Share capital

11,376,345

Share premium reserve

18,198,319

Revenue reserves:
Legal reserve

Possibilities
for use

Available
portion

Summary of uses in the past
three years
to absorb
losses

for other
purposes

A.B.C

9,320,727
287,274

A. B

Retained earnings

3,029,472

A.B.C

Consolidation reserve

6,003,841

Merger surplus
Extraordinary reserve
Capital reserves:
Merger surplus
Extraordinary reserve
Reserve for treasury shares

33,816,377
(560,807)
34,377,184

A.B.C

(4,748,025 )

Total
Non-distributable portion

6,003,841

Remainder - distributable
portion

48,853,297

As discussed in the report on the operations of EQUITA Group S.p.A. the Board of Directors makes the proposal to
shareholders to allocate the whole of the profit for the year to shareholders by way of a dividend, to be assigned on
the basis of the rules established in the Company’s bylaws, and also to pay a dividend out of the distributable reserves,
with the total dividend to be put into payment from the day following that scheduled for the shareholders’ meeting
dealing with these matters.
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Part C – Information on the income statement
Section 1 – Net trading income – Line item 10
1.1 Composition of line item 10 “Net trading income”
Line items/Counter-entry to income
and expense (E)
1.

Financial assets

1.1

Debt securities

1.2

Equity securities and units in UCIs

1.3

Other assets

2.

Financial liabilities

2.1

Debt securities

2.2

Payables

2.3

Other liabilities

3.

Financial assets and liabilities:
exchange differences

4.

Financial derivatives

Gains

Trading
profits

Losses

Trading
losses

Net profit
(loss)

29,833

2,187,656.01

46,279

175,903 1,995,306.33

583,148

13,155,279

563,199

3,263,422

9,911,807

108,995

1,841,837

130,398

1,094,476

725,958

1,962,866

11,779,917

1,367,961

15,777,735

(3,402,913)

2,684,842

28,964,690

2,107,837

20,311,537

9,230,158

– on debt securities and interest rates
– on equity securities and stock
indices
– on currencies
– other
5.

Credit derivatives
Total

EQUITA GROUP - 2017 ANNUAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

113

Section 5 – Commissions– Line items 50 and 60
5.1 Composition of line item 50 “Commission income”
Amount (E)

2017

2016

14,044,292

17,572,800

1.

Proprietary trading

2.

Execution of orders on behalf of customers

3.

Placement and distribution

7,503,046

2,544,085

– of securities

7,503,046

2,544,085

–

–

- portfolio management

–

–

- collective management

–

–

- insurance products

–

–

- other

–

–

3,016,392

2,062,727

–

–

– delegated by third parties

3,016,392

2,062,727

5.

Receipt and transmission of orders

6,146,020

5,481,863

6.

Investment advice

–

–

7.

Financial structuring advice

12,696,804

13,329,390

8.

Management of multilateral trading facilities

–

–

9.

Custody and administration

–

–

– of third party services:

4.

Portfolio management
– proprietary

10.

Currency trading

11.

Other services
Total
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–

–

3,728,210

4,105,965

47,134,764

45,096,830

5.2 Composition of line item 60 “Commission expense”
Amount (E)

2017

2016

663,277

365,617

1,739,173

1,569,123

1.

Proprietary trading

2.

Execution of orders on behalf of customers

3.

Placement and distribution

–

–

– of securities

–

–

– of third party services:

–

–

- portfolio management

–

–

- other

–

–

Portfolio management

–

–

– proprietary

–

–

– delegated by third parties

–

–

5.

Order collection

–

–

6.

Investment advice

–

–

7.

Custody and administration

–

–

8.

Other services

1,170,829

1,212,561

Total

3,573,278

3,147,301

4.

As stated in Part A – Accounting principles and policies the reclassification affecting the comparative figures for 2016
amounts to E312,215, increasing the figure for that year.

Section 6 – Interest – Line items 70 and 80
6.1 Composition of line item 70 “Interest and similar income”
Line item/technical form
Amount (E)

Debt
securities

Repos

Other
transactions

Total
2016

160,568

328,930

1.

Financial assets held for trading

2.

Financial assets at fair value

3.

Available-for-sale financial assets

4.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

5.

Loans and receivables

26,829

26,829

5,152

5.1

Due from banks

25,723

25,723

3,958

5.2

Due from financial entities

1,106

1,106

1,194

5.3

Due from customers

6.

Other assets

7.

Hedging derivatives
26,829

187,398

334,082

Total

160,568

Total
2017

160,568
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6.2 Composition of line item 80 “Interest and similar expense”
Line item/technical form
Amount (E)
1.

Due to banks

2.

Due to financial entities

3.

Due to customers

4.

Outstanding securities

5.

Financial liabilities held for
trading

6.

Financial liabilities at fair value

7.

Other liabilities

8.

Hedging derivatives
Total

Debt
securities

Repos

11,668

718,984

Securities

Other

690

528,717
78,387

540,385

718,984

Total
2017

Total
2016

730,652

526,931

690

622

528,717

389,176

78,387

91,408

79,427 1,338,796 1,008,138

As stated in Part A – Accounting principles and policies the reclassification affecting the comparative figures for 2016
amounts to E312,215, decreasing the figure for that year.
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Section 7 – Dividends and similar income – Line item 90
7.1 Composition of line item 90 “Dividends and similar income”
2017
Amount (E)

Dividends

1.

Financial assets held for trading

2,245,701

2.

Available-for-sale financial assets

3.

Financial assets at fair value

4.

Equity investments
Total

2016
Income
from
units in
UCIs

Dividends

Income
from
units in
UCIs

2,437,921

10,625

2,256,326

2,437,921

This item consists of dividends - on securities momentarily held in portfolio for trading - prevalently received for shares.

Section 8 – Net losses/recoveries on impairment – Line item 100
8.3 Composition of the sub-item 100.b “Net losses/recoveries on impairment
of other financial assets”
The reversal of impairment losses of E30K on other financial assets refers to the mentioned renegotiation for a total
of approximately E65K relating to a receivable which was written down by approximately E122K in 2015.
In addition three receivable balances were written down by over E130K in 2017.
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Section 9 – Administrative expenses – Line item 110
9.1 Composition of line item 110.a “Personnel expenses”
2017

2016

20,100,203

18,215,995

4,813,237

4,147,726

–

–

14,103

18,410

835,364

1,378,411

– defined contribution

–
–

–
–

– defined benefit

–

–

–

–

– defined contribution

–

–

– defined benefit

–

–

h) other expenses

533,579

546,429

2.

Other personnel in service

128,620

169,050

3.

Directors and statutory auditors

827,644

829,658

4.

Retired personnel

–

–

5.

Expense reimbursements for employees seconded to other
companies

6.

Expense reimbursements for employees seconded within the
Company
27,252,750

25,305,679

2017

2016

Amount (E)
1.

Employees
a) salaries and wages
b) social charges
c) employee termination indemnities
d) pension expense
e) accrual to the employee termination indemnities
f) accrual to the retirement fund and other obligations

g) payments to external supplementary pension funds:

Total

9.2 Average number of employees by category
a)

executives

17

16

b)

middle management

58

55

c)

other personnel
Total
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9.3 Composition of line item 110.b “Other administrative expenses”
Amount (E)
1.

2017

2016

a) expenses for technology and systems

3,609,192

3,356,024

b) expenses for info providers and telephony

1,844,899

1,773,237

c) rent and management of premises

1,572,515

1,441,098

d) commercial expenses

1,246,640

1,287,013

e) professional consultancy

1,552,944

1,282,975

g) miscellaneous expenses

1,108,508

639,832

186,372

147,220

11,121,071

9,927,399

Other administrative expenses

f) auditors’ fees and Consob
Total

Section 10 – Net (losses) recoveries on impairment of tangible assets – Line
item 120
10.1 C
 omposition of line item 120 “Net (losses) recoveries on impairment of
tangible assets”
Item/impairment losses and reversals (E)
1.

Depreciation
(a)

Adjustments
for
impairment
(b)

Reversals (c)

Net result
(a - b +c)

Owned assets

146,807

146,807

– for business use

146,807

146,807

146,807

146,807

– for investment
2.

Assets acquired under finance leases
– for business use
– for investment
Total
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Section 11 – Net (losses) recoveries on impairment of intangible assets –
Line item 130
11.1 Composition of line item 130 “Net (losses) recoveries on impairment of
intangible assets”

Item/impairment losses and reversals (E)
1.

Goodwill

2.

Other intangible assets

Amortization
(a)

Adjustments
for
impairment
(b)

Reversals (c)

Net result
(a - b +c)

314,333

314,333

314,333

314,333

314,333

314,333

2.1 owned assets
– internally generated
– other
2.2 acquired under finance leases
Total

Section 13 – Net accruals to allowances – Line item 150
The accrual to allowances mainly relates to personnel liabilities for which the timing or amount are uncertain.
No accruals were made in 2017 as the required conditions did not exist.

Section 14 – Other operating income and expense – Line item 160
14.1 Composition of line item 160 “Other operating income and expense”
Amount (E)
1.

2017

2016

543,185

352,690

45,605

12,340

588,790

365,030

63,928

501

b) miscellaneous expense

122,738

37,105

Total expense

186,666

37,606

Total, net

402,124

327,424

Other operating income
a) prior year income
b) miscellaneous income
Total income

2.

Other operating expense
a) prior year expense

Prior year income consists of a reimbursement of E400K from the National Guarantee Fund relating to the settlement
for “special management”.
In 2016 this item consisted of amounts due to the Company as part of the above-mentioned settlement of the
first insolvency procedure for the Burani balances. Further details of this matter can be found under “6.3 Due from
customers”
“Other operating expense – miscellaneous expense” includes the depreciation charged on leasehold improvements.
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Section 17 – Income tax for the year on ordinary operations – Line item 190
17.1 C
 omposition of line item 190 “Income tax for the year on ordinary
operations”
Amount (E)

2017

2016

1.

Current taxes

4,747,382

5,548,731

2.

Changes in prior years’ current taxes

308,791

18,021

3.

Reduction of current taxes for the year

(1,084,121)

3.bis Reduction of current taxes for the year for tax credits pursuant to
Law no. 214/2011

–

4.

Change in deferred tax assets

533,803

5.

Change in deferred tax liabilities

(156,512)

Taxes relating to the year

4,349,343

(1,020,089)
4,546,663

17.2 Reconciliation between theoretical tax charge and actual tax charge
Thousands of
euros
Gross profit for the year
Theoretical tax charge
Tax effect of costs non-deductible either wholly or in part

Tax rate %

15,365
4,543

29.57%

430

2.80%

Tax effect of costs income not taxed either wholly or in part

(479)

(3.12%)

Tax effect of other changes

(145)

(0.94%)

Actual tax charge

4,349

28.30%
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Part D – Other information
Section 1 – Specific references to the activities performed
Proprietary trading
Amount (E)
Transactions
with group
counterparties
A.

Purchases during the year

A.1 Debt securities
A.2 Equity securities

2,090,086,901
757

A.3 Units of UCIs

3,358,054,160
817,848,296

A.4 Derivative instruments

B.

Transactions
with other
counterparties

3,757,124,563

– financial derivatives

–

– credit derivatives

–

3,757,124,563

Sales during the year

B.1 Debt securities
of which government bonds

–

2,084,201,448

–

627,922,924

B.2 Equity securities

–

3,375,338,432

B.3 Units of UCIs

–

817,902,588

B.4 Derivative instruments

–

3,312,043,849

– financial derivatives

–

3,312,043,849

– credit derivatives

–

–
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Order execution on behalf of customers
Transactions
with group
counterparties

Amount (E)

Transactions
with other
counterparties

A.

Purchases during the year

A.1

Debt securities

1,403,893,030

A.2

Equity securities

12,159,261,375

A.3

Units of UCIs

527,968,767

A.4

Derivative instruments

449,709,011

– financial derivatives

449,709,011

– credit derivatives
B.

Sales during the year

B.1

Debt securities

1,839,639,459

of which government bonds

1,438,868,674

B.2

Equity securities

10,994,591,466

B.3

Units of UCIs

578,268,131

B.4

Derivative instruments

341,083,070

– financial derivatives

341,083,070

– credit derivatives

Portfolio management
C.1 Total amount of portfolio management

Amount (E)
1.

Debt securities

2017

2016

Proprie- Delegated
tary mamanagenagement
ment

Proprie- Delegated
tary mamanagenagement
ment

16,655,233

12,970,979

10,650,223

219,277

(217,264)

(112,581)

27,088,192

13,077,675

of which government bonds
2.

Equity securities

3.

Units of UCIs

4.

Derivative instruments
– financial derivatives
– credit derivatives

5.

Other assets
Liabilities
Total managed portfolios
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C.2 Proprietary and delegated management: operations during the year
Amount
Amount (E)

Transactions
with group
counterparties

Transactions
with other
counterparties

A.

Proprietary management

A.1

Purchases during the year

A.2

Sales during the year

B.

Delegated management

B.1

Purchases during the year

12,991,180

B.2

Sales during the year

10,094,000

Transactions
with SIMs

Placement activities
D.1 Placement with and without guarantee
Amount (E)

2017

2016

– relating to transactions managed by group companies

–

–

– relating to other transactions

–

–

–

–

– relating to other transactions

19,890,000

5,788,200

Total securities placed with guarantee (A)

19,890,000

5,788,200

– relating to transactions managed by group companies

–

–

– relating to other transactions

–

–

–

–

– relating to other transactions

525,649,715

209,053,694

Total securities placed without guarantee (B)

525,649,715

209,053,694

Total securities placed (A+B)

545,539,715

214,841,894

1.

Securities placed with guarantee:

1.1

Structured securities

1.2

Other securities
– relating to transactions managed by group companies

2.

Securities placed without guarantee:

2.1

Structured securities

2.2

Other securities
– relating to transactions managed by group companies
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D.2 Placement and distribution: products and services placed at group
branches
2017
Amount (E)
1.

2016

Products and
Products and
services of
services of
group
others
companies

Products and
Products and
services of
services of
group
others
companies

126,022,950

158,931,408

Debt securities
– structured securities

–

–

–

–

– other securities

–

126,022,950

–

158,931,408

2.

Equity securities

–

405,834,702

–

42,340,200

3.

Units of UCIs

–

13,682,063

–

13,570,286

4.

Other financial instruments

–

–

–

–

5.

Insurance products

–

–

–

–

6.

Loans

–

–

–

–

– of which: leases

–

–

–

–

– of which factoring

–

–

–

–

– of which: consumer credit

–

–

–

–

– of which: other

–

–

–

–

7.

Portfolio management

–

–

–

–

8.

Other

–

–

–

–

Guarantees and commitments
At the balance sheet date the Company had the following commitments for lease agreements entered into with an
external property company:
•• lease agreement for the first floor of the property in Via Turati 9, for the period 1/06/2016 - 31/05/2022, renewable
to 2028;
•• lease agreement for the fourth floor of the property in Via Turati 9, for the period 1/1/2014 - 31/12/2019,
renewable to 2025;
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Order receipt and transmission
E.1 Order receipt and transmission
Amount
Amount (E)

Transactions
with group
counterparties

Transactions
with other
counterparties

A.

Purchase orders brokered during the year

A.1

Debt securities

–

4,076,802

A.2

Equity securities

–

5,241,378,109

A.3

Units of UCIs

–

35,868,412

A.4

Derivative instruments

–

92,610,092

– financial derivatives

–

92,610,092

– credit derivatives

–

–

A.5

Other

–

–

B.

Sales orders brokered during the year

B.1

Debt securities

–

3,335,279

B.2

Equity securities

–

5,235,007,517

B.3

Units of UCIs

–

58,732,913

B.4

Derivative instruments

–

81,702,057

– financial derivatives

–

81,702,057

– credit derivatives

–

–

Other

–

–

B.5

Investment and financial structuring advice
There were 26 outstanding consultancy agreements for corporate activity at December 31st, 2017. There are no
consultancy arrangements for investments as defined in article 1, paragraph 5f) of the Consolidated Finance Law
(TUF).

Custody and administration of financial instruments
Amount (E)

2017

-

Third party securities on deposit

–

-

Third party securities deposited with third parties

–

-

Owned securities deposited with third parties
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62,745,338

Section 2 – Information on risks and relative hedging policies
Introduction
As stated earlier the holding EQUITA Group S.p.A. is the parent of a group of SIMs while the subsidiary EQUITA SIM is
the main operating company. For this reason, starting from this present section, information is provided mainly about
EQUITA SIM S.p.A..
EQUITA Group has a system of internal controls which on the basis of the directives issued by the Board of Directors
ensures there is a managed-risk environment in which the growth of the Company and the generation of value
are sustainable. The system of controls includes the regulations, procedures and organizational structures which, in
compliance with the Group’s strategies, aim to achieve effective control of internal processes in order to mitigate the
possible negative effects arising from unexpected events.
The Board of Directors, the Statutory Board of Auditors, the Control and Risks Committee and the Control Functions
form part of the internal control system. The Risk Management Function guarantees second level controls on business
risks, with reference to both to first pillar risks which relate to the core business, represented mainly by proprietary
trading and trading on behalf of third parties and by operating risk, and second pillar risks which include funding,
strategic and reputational risk. The Risk Manager’s autonomy is ensured by a reporting line going directly to the Board
of Directors.
The Risk Management Function collaborates actively with the other independent control functions in implementing
and managing the procedures designed to understand and mitigate business risks.

2.1 Market risks
2.1.1 Interest rate risk
Disclosures of a qualitative nature
General aspects
Interest rate risk
The proprietary operations carried out by EQUITA SIM mostly regard trading in equity securities, bonds and derivatives
on equities and stock indices. Its exposure in bonds has remained constant on average since the beginning of 2017
by maintaining a portfolio of debt securities for both investment and trading purposes. The average size of such
operations was approximately E6 mn and the connected interest rate risk was estimated to be within market risk and
of modest amount.
The Company also acts as a liquidity provider or specialist for corporate bonds issued by primary counterparties; this
activity, though, does not generate interest rate risk as positions are always compensated at the end of the operating
day.
From all of this it can be concluded that interest rate risk has a low level of significance for the Company. Effects on
profit or loss may therefore arise from:
•• the cost of financing a position;
•• the “Rho” coefficient for a position.
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a) The cost of financing a position:
In order to finance proprietary trading operations EQUITA SIM uses both own funds and third party capital, resorting
to the security lending market or taking out loans with banks. Financing operations are usually short term with
variable interest rates.
An increase in interest rates with the resulting rise in borrowing costs would lead to a reduction in the operating
margin; this risk has not materialised over the past few years because the ECB has continued with its expansionary
policy, keeping rates at historically low levels (12-month Euribor is still negative) with the consequent decrease in
financing costs. In addition contained operating activities have required only a limited activation of the available
facilities and then for reduced periods of time.
b) The “Rho” coefficient for a position:
This coefficient represents the sensitivity of option premiums to changes in interest rates. Premiums (purchased or
sold) are valued by using a specific interest rate curve, whose variation causes a change in the value of the options.
Once again EQUITA SIM had a modest number of options with terms of more than one year in its portfolio in
2017, and so the Rho coefficient, which as said measures sensitivity to interest rates, was stable, settling at around
E40K (the effect on profit or loss of a change of 1% in interest rates), with a high of E90K.
There were no changes in the methods used for measuring risk compared to the previous year.
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Disclosures of a quantitative nature
1. Trading portfolio: by remaining term (repricing date) of financial assets and liabilities

On
demand

Up to 3
months

From 3
months
to 6
months

From 6
months
to 1 year

From 1
year to 5
years

From 5
years to
10 years

Over 10
years

1.1 Debt securities

–

5,153,970

719,280

1,266,454

3,532,020

507,501

798,171

–

1.2 Other assets

–

–

–

3,840

77,860

–

–

41,262,526

2.1 Payables

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

2.2 Debt securities

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

2.3 Other liabilities

–

–

–

–

–

–

Type (E)

Indefinite
term

1. Assets

2. Liabilities

-680,700 -28,640,175

3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underlying security
– Options
Long positions

–

13,563,539

3,327,840

3,039,940

472,386

–

–

–

Short positions

–

(12,360,411)

(1,392,298)

(217,665)

(256,359)

–

–

–

Long positions

–

833,719

–

–

–

–

–

–

Short positions

–

(909,826)

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Other

3.2 Without underlying security
– Options
Long positions

–

1,059,322

346,754

241,882

–

–

–

–

Short positions

–

(2,491,851)

(396,701)

(318,280)

(33,371)

–

–

–

Long positions

–

6,118,935

–

–

–

–

–

–

Short positions

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Other
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2. Non-current portfolio: by remaining term (repricing date) of financial assets and liabilities

Type (E)

On
demand

Up to 3
months

From 3
months
to 6
months

From 6
months
to 1 year

From 1
year to 5
years

From 5
years to
10 years

1. Assets
1.1 Debt securities

–

1.2 Other assets

–

2. Liabilities
2.1 Payables

–

2.2 Debt securities

–

2.3 Other liabilities

–

3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underlying security
– Options
Long positions

–

Short positions

–

– Other
Long positions

–

Short positions

–

3.2 Without underlying security
– Options
Long positions

–

Short positions

–

– Other
Long positions

–

Short positions

–
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800,000

1,354,394

Over 10
years

Indefinite
term

2.1.2 Price risk

Disclosures of a qualitative nature
1. General aspects
Price risk
As part of market risks price risk is defined as the risk of incurring losses caused by adverse changes in market
parameters (volatility, price) with reference to the owned portfolio.
On the basis of the “Manual for Assuming Financial Risks” approved by the Board of Directors, EQUITA SIM can carry
out transactions (assuming long or short positions indifferently) in all the financial instruments listed on a regulated
market or an MTF, as well as in unlisted plain vanilla instruments (OTC).
In order to monitor the overall exposure the owned portfolio is divided into two macro-categories: “Equity and Equity
Like Instruments” and “Non Equity Instruments”, subject to different operating limits that are monitored on a daily
basis by the risk management function.
In particular the Net Worst Case is calculated for the “Equity and Equity Like Instruments” portfolio by assuming the
most economically adverse conditions obtained by simulating price/volatility changes using pre-determined parameters
and applying these assumptions to the positions “weighted” by their signs and beta coefficients.
On the other hand the VaR is calculated for the “Non Equity Instruments” portfolio on the basis of a confidence
interval of 99% of the distribution and a time horizon of 1 day.
“Orc” position-keeping software and the Bloomberg platform are used for monitoring the above indicators,
supplemented by external processing. The values obtained are then compared with the limits prescribed by the
Regulation approved by the SIM’s Board of Directors which envisages two different intervention levels. Exceeding the
established limits leads to a warning being sent to the Risk Committee and if the conditions are met also to the Board
of Directors.
A graphical representation of trends in the two parameters during 2017(1) is as follows::
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The risk relating to each underlying is also assessed and measured by using the previously described method with
parameters slightly different from price/volatility variation. The result provides an estimate of the maximum daily loss
for a single security and the sum of these provides the “Total Gross Worst Case” for the portfolio as a whole (the sum
Gross
Worst Case (€
and most
Equity Like
- Delta 1%
of the maximum losses
generated
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The following graph shows trends in the Total Gross Worst Case in 2017:
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In compliance with the operating limits set by the Regulation and approved by the Board of Directors there is the
possibility of allocating operating limits. The Risk Manager ensures compliance with those limits, reporting any
anomalies.
In particular limits have been introduced for the main parameters used in managing the position: delta 1%, gamma
1% (measured in futures equivalent), theta and vega.
The following table relates to the past two years
Average value of the main Greek parameters

2017

2016

126,706

150,976

Gamma 1% (in futures)

-2,26

3.3

Theta (€)

2,613

2,476

Vega (€)

-6,170

7,226

Delta 1% (€)

Finally there are operational limits on individual securities expressed in terms of delta 1% and in terms of the overall
value of the position. To contain concentration risk, the overall position limits vary on the basis of the capitalization
of the individual security.
In addition to a summary of the above risks the Risk Matrix produced on a daily basis by the Risk Manager also reports
a valuation of the profitability of the position and a comparison with various time intervals in order to monitor the
risk-return ratio. In addition to the above-mentioned indicators the values of the Greek parameters are also provided
together with the P&L for groups of homogeneous portfolios, the capital/RWA ratio and the risk value of the portfolios
of customers for whom EQUITA acts as guarantor at a clearing house.
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Limite Delta 1

Disclosures of a quantitative nature
Equity securities and UCIs
Carrying Amount (E)

Carrying Amount (E)

Level 2

Level 3

33,417,735

771,995

263,498
–

2,405
–

8,264
–
–

–

–

1,354,394
–

– harmonized open-end

–

–

–

–

–

–

– non-harmonized
open-end

–

–

–

–

–

–

– closed-end

–

–

–

–

–

–

– reserved

–

–

–

–

–

–

– speculative

–

–

–

–

–

–

Under the laws of other EU
states

263,498

2,405

–

–

–

–

– harmonized

263,498
–

2,405
–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– non-harmonized
closed-end

–

–

–

–

–

–

Under the laws of non-EU
states

–

–

–

–

–

1,354,394

– open-end

–

–

–

–

–

–

– closed-end

–

–

–

–

–

1,354,394

33,681,234

774,400

8,264

–

–

2,154,394

Equity securities

2.

UCIs

2.1

Under Italian law

– non-harmonized
open-end

2.3

Other

Level 1
1.

2.2

Trading portfolio

Total

Level 1
–

Level 2
–

–

–

Level 3
800,000
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2.1.3 Exchange rate risk

Disclosures of a qualitative nature
1. General aspects
The subsidiary EQUITA SIM does not operate on the foreign exchange market (Forex).
There have been virtually no transactions in securities denominated in currencies other then the Euro on the bond
market while the Company’s equity security portfolio, in particular that relating to Northern Europe and Asia, contained
exposures during the year to the Swedish, British and US currencies.
The transactions performed by the Company are not immediately settled by purchasing the reference currency, as
the financing agreement with the depositary bank allows EQUITA to remain open in currency; in this way the risk is
restricted to the profit/loss arising from the transaction and is not extended to the whole of the countervalue.
Although for the internal model the risk is negligible, currency positions lead to a provision being made pursuant to
the requirements of the First Pillar.
The exchange risk from exposures not arising from the trading portfolio is also negligible as it only relates to current
accounts in currency held to settle operations on non-Euro financial markets, which also contain the amounts
generated by commission income.
Currency balances are constantly monitored using an IT tool that is able to compare these balances with the amounts
invested in securities, and are converted into Euros on reaching a specific materiality threshold. The tool is used by the
Administration and by Risk Management to perform first and second level controls respectively.
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Disclosures of a quantitative nature
1. Analysis by the currency in which financial assets and liabilities are denominated
Currency

1.

Financial assets

1.1

Debt securities

1.2

Equity securities

1.3

Other financial assets

2.

Other assets

3.

Liabilities

3.1

Payables

3.2

Debt securities

3.3

Subordinated liabilities

3.4

Other financial liabilities

4.

Other liabilities

5.

Financial derivatives

US Dollar

British
Pound

1,992,911

–

Yen Turkish Lira
–

1,992,911
8,951,217

62,2943

–

Swiss
Franc

Other
currencies

329,004

206,142

329,004

206,142

14,511

153,520

(323,096)

(213,218)

(329,907)
(10,406,758)

– Options
Long positions
Short positions
– Other
Long positions
Short positions
Total assets
Total liabilities
Difference (+/-)
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2.1.4. Operations in derivative financial instruments
The Company uses derivative instruments for corporate investment purposes with the aim of carrying out hedging
operations as market maker in stock options and stock futures and on the FtseMib index, or brokering for third parties.
The position risks associated with derivative products are considered together with the relative underlyings. The risks
associated with the pure non-linear part of the instruments (e.g. gamma) are subject to operating limits monitored
on a daily basis.
As far as the IDEM market is concerned during the year the Company traded 0.3% of the FTMIB futures (14th place),
2.65% of the iso-alfas (6th place), 0.47% of the stock futures (6th place) and 0.7% of the options on the index (12th
place).
EQUITA did not enter any OTC option contracts in 2017 that led to counterparty risk.
Equity SIM is a member of the Eurex market and acts as a derivatives broker on behalf of its customers, while its
proprietary activity on this market is still only of an occasional nature.
There were no changes in the methodologies used to measure risk compared to those used in 2016. Further details
can be found in paragraph 2.1.2.

2.2 Operating risks

Disclosures of a qualitative nature
1. General aspects
Operating risks
EQUITA Group has implemented controls of the operating risks to be found within each of the single areas in its
subsidiary EQUITA SIM, extending the area of analysis. To this end the work carried out to prepare the ICAAP report
was especially useful.
The estimate of the risk capital allocated to deal with risks that might lead to operating losses was carried out in
accordance with the recommendations provided by the supervisory authorities and considering the SIM’s net asset
situation.
Despite the fact that the Company uses the basic method (BIA – Basic Indicator Approach) to estimate the regulatory
capital to be allocated against potential operating risks (15% of the relevant indicator) a risk self-assessment was
performed at Group level.
For this purpose questionnaires were drawn up and then sent out to the single heads of the business areas with the
aim of establishing the degree of risk of potential events occurring, estimating a frequency and a possible average
and maximum loss. The results of these procedures were summarized in a table (“Heat Map”) which for each macrocategory of event graphically shows the associated level of risk.
In addition the Group collects information on operating losses (“loss data collection”), storing this in a database in
order to be able to monitor the different types of risk that have occurred.
The results obtained show that the basic method currently used overestimates the results obtained with the risk selfassessment, guaranteeing capital solidity also in the event of unexpected losses.
There were no changes in the methodologies used to measure risk compared to those used in 2016.
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2.3 Credit risk

Disclosures of a qualitative nature
1. General aspects
Credit risk
As it mainly operates as an intermediary on the equity market and since lending is not one of its activities EQUITA SIM
is not subject to the credit risk typically experienced by banks.
This category does not include “delivery” risk, meaning the risk from the physical delivery of securities (or the countervalue) at the settlement date, as this resembles a price risk, given that the SIM keeps the other side of the transaction as
a guarantee of the successful outcome of the settlement (simultaneous settlement).
The following types of transaction can give rise to risks for the SIM:
•• pledged guarantees and commitments to disburse funds;
•• cash risk activities;
•• SFTs and long-term settlement transactions;
•• the stipulation of unlisted option contracts (OTCs) and therefore those not managed by the central counterparty
(CC&G).
In particular, to control the cases relating to credit risk, the SIM has procedures that govern the acquisition of new
customers. These procedures require a customer assessment and profiling/classification to be carried out in accordance
with money-laundering legislation and legislation enacting the European directive on financial instrument markets
respectively, together with the processing of a specific credit application depending on the type of operations required,
the nature of the customer and his country of residence. The credit granted can be reviewed, amended or withdrawn by
the Operational Risk Committee which reviews the periodic reports controlling the established limits.

2.4 Funding risk

Disclosures of a qualitative nature
1. General aspects, processes for managing funding risk and methods for
measuring funding risk
In addition to using its own funds the Company finances its activities by using a whole series of credit facilities, in this
way diversifying funding risk on the basis of its operating needs. The Company keeps a principal line with the bank
which is constantly activated and the bank also provides custody and settlement services.
Business liquidity is closely monitored by way of a daily report distributed to the various departments of the Company.
Trends during the year pointed to risk profiles that were lower than the past and the fact that interest rates remained
at extremely low levels reduced the economic effect arising from funding activities.
Analysing the market risk component shows that statistically the Company only invests in listed financial instruments
and is provided with indicators that monitor the concentration of assets also on the basis of an immediate need for
funds; in addition, proprietary trading has left full availability to deal with normal third party settlement activity and
any contingent needs.
Since June 15th, 2017 the Company has a Revival Plan which contains the following indicators for monitoring liquidity
on a daily basis. “Gross Available Liquidity” which monitors the availability of total cash and the total availability
deriving from credit facilities, regardless of whether these have been actually activated or not. Given that to be utilized
certain credit facilities require collateralization with the pledging of a more than a proportionate portfolio of financial
instruments, the absence of pledgeable instruments makes the residual portion of the credit facility unusable. To deal
with this particular operating situation a second indicator “Net Available Liquidity” has been introduced which is
calculated as the sum of liquidity held in current accounts, the credit still available on facilities not requiring pledges
regardless of whether these have been actually activated and the lower of pledgeable securities and the liquidity
collateralised on pledged facilities.
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–
–

– Long positions

– Short positions

C.3 Loans to be received

(4,526,690)

– Short positions

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

– Long positions

C.2 Financial derivatives without
equity swap

– Short positions

– Long positions

C.1 Financial derivatives with
equity swap

Off balance sheet transaction

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

B.3 Other liabilities

–

–

–

–

B.2 Debt securities

–

–
–

2,048,550

86,285 117,504,990

9,496,551

–

–

–

From
more than
7 days to
15 days

– Customers

– Financial entities

– Banks

B.1 Due to

Cash liabilities

A.4 Other assets

–

–

16,282,412 142,386,875

–

A.2 Other debt securities

A.3 Loans

–

On
demand

A.1 Government bonds

Cash assets

Item/time band
Amount (E)

From
more than
1 day to 7
days

–

–

–

–

(5,967,865)

3,533,091

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

From
more than
15 days to
1 month

–

–

–

–

(7,302,371)

10,864,167

–

–

–

–

–

1,557,326

–

–

From
more than
1 month
to 3 months

–

–

–

–

(1,392,298)

3,327,840

–

–

–

–

–

–

33,093

–

From
more than
3 months
to 6
months

Temporal analysis by residual contractual term of financial assets and liabilities

Disclosures of a qualitative nature

–

–

–

–

(217,665)

3,039,940

–

–

–

–

–

3,840

1,737,029

–

From more
than 6
months to
1 year

–

–

–

–

(256,359)

472,386

–

–

–

–

–

3,874

5,120,280

–

From
more
than 1
year to 3
years

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

873,986

1,290,238

–

From
more than
3 yeas to
5 years

–

–

–

–

40,996,623

–

–

Indefinite
term

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(680,700 ) (24,113,485)

–

–

–

1,354,394

3,794,358

2,398

Over 5
years

Section 3 – Equity disclosures
3.1 Equity
3.1.1 Disclosures of a qualitative nature
Equity consists mainly of fully subscribed and paid-up share capital, capital reserves and the share premium reserve.
In addition to retained earnings, revenue reserves consist of the legal reserve, the bylaws reserve and a part of the
merger surplus.

3.1.2 Disclosures of a quantitative nature
3.1.2.1 Equity: composition
Amount (E)

2017

2016

1.

Share capital

11,376,345

19,240,000

2.

Share premium reserve

18,198,319

3.

Other reserves

43,137,103

– revenue reserves

9,320,727

a) legal reserve
b) statutory reserve

–

c) treasury shares

–

d) other

9,320,727

– other

33,816,377

4.

(Treasury shares)

(4,748,025)

5.

Valuation reserves

–

–

– Available-for-sale financial assets

–

–

– Property, plant and equipment

–

–

– Intangible assets

–

–

– Foreign investment hedges

–

–

– Cash flow hedges

–

–

– Foreign exchange differences

–

–

– Non-current assets held for sale

–

–

– Special revaluation laws

–

–

– Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit pension plans

–

–

– Portion of the valuation reserves – equity accounted investees

–

–

6.

Equity instruments

–

–

7.

Profit (loss) for the year
Minority interests in equity
Total

(91,435)

11,015,831

8,806,619

–

23,482,601

78,979,573

51,437,785
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3.2 Own funds and regulatory coefficients
3.2.1 Own funds
3.2.1.1 Disclosures of a qualitative nature
1. Common Equity Tier 1 – CET 1
CET 1 capital consists of CET 1 instruments (E11,376,344) and of the share premium reserve (E18,198,319). The
other accountable reserves amount to E43,137,104. Deductions consist of: i) intangible assets, other than goodwill
for E2,640,227; ii) goodwill for E11,014,258; iii) own shares for E4,748,025; and iv) non-significant investments in
instruments issued by financial institutions for E1,518,194.

2. Additional Tier 1 – AT1
Not applicable.

Tier 2 – T2
Not applicable.
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3.2.1.2 Disclosures of a quantitative nature
Amount (E)
A.

Common Equity Tier 1 – CET1 before the application of prudential
filters

2017

2016

72,711,767

19,625,531

72,711,767

19,625,531

(19,920,705)

(2,222,393)

52,791,062

17,403,138

of which CET1 instruments subject to transitional adjustments
B.

CET1 prudential filters (+/-)

C.

CET1 before items to be deducted and the impact of the transitional
regime (A+/-B)

D.

Items to be deducted from CET1

E.

Transitional regime – Impact on CET1 (+/-)

F.

Total Common Equity Tier 1 – CET1 (C-D+/-E)

G.

Additional Tier 1 – AT1 before items to be deducted and the impact
of the transitional regime

1,472,188

of which AT1 instruments subject to transitional adjustments
H.

Items to be deducted from AT1

(671,401 )

I.

Transitional regime – Impact on AT1 (+/-)

L.

Total Additional Tier 1 – AT1 (G-H+/-I)

M.

Tier 2-T2 before items to be deducted and the impact of the
transitional regime

800,787
1,962,917

of which T2 instruments subject to transitional provisions
N.

Items to be deducted from T2

O.

Transitional regime – impact on T2 (+/-)

P.

Total Tier 2 - T2 (M - N +/- O)

Q.

Total own funds (F + L + P)

(572,083)
1,390,834
52,791,062

19,594,759
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3.2.2 Capital adequacy
3.2.2.1 Disclosures of a qualitative nature
The Company monitors the adequacy of its equity using the methods and tools described in its ICAAP (Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process) report.

3.2.2.2 Disclosures of a quantitative nature
Capital requirements (E)

2017

2016

Capital requirement for market risk

4,775,255

6,898,548

Counterparty and credit risk

1,647,686

1,445,433

59

791

7,730,647

7,274,717

14,153,647

15,619,489

176,920,588

195,243,613

2. CET1 capital ratio

29.84%

8.91%

3. Tier 1 capital ratio

29.84%

9.32%

4. Total capital ratio

29.84%

10.04%

Credit valuation adjustment risk
Settlement/Delivery risk
Large exposure requirements
Capital requirement: based on fixed overheads
Operational risk
Other capital requirements
Total capital requirements required by prudent regulations
Initial capital
RISK ASSETS AND REGULATORY RATIOS
1. Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
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Section 4 – Analytical schedule of comprehensive income
Amount (E)
10.

Profit (loss) for the year

Gross
amount

Income tax

Net amount
11,015,831

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
20.

Property, plant and equipment

30.

Intangible assets

40.

Defined benefit plans

50.

Non-current assets held for sale

60.

Portion of the valuation reserves – equity accounted
investees
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss

70.

Foreign investment hedges:
a) changes in fair value
b) reclassifications to profit or loss
c) other changes

80.

Foreign exchange differences:
a) changes in fair value
b) reclassifications to profit or loss
c) other changes

90.

Cash flow hedges:
a) changes in fair value
b) reclassifications to profit or loss
c) other changes

100. Available-for-sale financial assets:
a) changes in value
b) reclassifications to profit or loss
– impairment adjustments
– realised gains/losses
c) other changes
110. Non-current assets held for sale:
a) changes in fair value
b) reclassifications to profit or loss
c) other changes
120. Portion of the valuation reserves – equity accounted
investees:
a) changes in fair value
b) reclassifications to profit or loss
– impairment adjustments
– realised gains/losses
c) other changes
130. Total other comprehensive income
140. Total comprehensive income (Items 10+130)

11,015,831
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Section 5 – Related party transactions
5.1

Compensation of key management

786,848

5.2

Loans and guarantees granted in favour of directors and statutory auditors

5.3

Related party transactions

–
229,167

The figure shown for related party transactions refers to the management fee agreement with EPS SPAC S.p.A. and
financial advisory and brokerage activities performed for the private debt fund.

Section 6 – Disclosures on structured entities
There are no disclosures to report in this respect.

Section 7 – Other disclosures
Disclosure of audit fees and fees for services other than audit
As required by article 149 – duodecies of the Issuers’ Regulation adopted by Consob by way of Resolution no.
11971/1999 the following table sets out the fees relating to the year for services provided to the Company by the
audit firm and other entities belonging to the audit firm’s network:
Type of service

Entity providing the service

Fees (E) (a)

Audit services

KPMG S.p.A

65,644

Confort letters

_

400

Tax advice

_

–

KPMG S.p.A

257,900

Other

(b)

(a) excluding expenses, VAT and the Consob contribution
(b) “Other” consists of fees for signing the tax returns.

Public disclosures
EQUITA Group has a corporate website www.equitagroup.it to make public disclosure of the information required by
part eight, Titles I and II of Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of June 26th,
2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
The Chief Executive Officer
Andrea Vismara
Milan, March 14th, 2018
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EQUITA Group S.p.A.
Phone +39 (02) 62041
Info: equita@equitasim.it
Web site: www.equitagroup.it

